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Wwe are honoured to submit the Annual Report of the Greater Tzaneen Economic Development
Agency (GTEDA) for the period 01 July 2016 to 30 June 2017, in accordance with Chapter 12
(Section 121) of the Municipal Finance Management Act (MFMA), 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003).

GTEDA as @ Municipal entity is required to prepare an Annual Report in accordance with the
provisions of section 121 of its founding legislation, the Local Government: Municipal Finance
Management Act, Act 56 of 2003 (MFMA) read with Municipal System Act. .
In terms of Section 121, the purpose of this Annual Report is:

a) To provide a record of the activities of GTEDA during the Financial Year 2016/17,;

b) To provide a report on performance against the budget of GTEDA for the same

period; and
cy To promote accountability 10 the local communities  of Greater Tzaneen

Municipalities for the decisions made throughout the year by GTEDA.

1t is through the Annual Report that GTEDA is able to foster transparent governance and
accountability by submitting the following for the Year Ending 30 June 2017:

i, Audited Annual Financial Statements;

ii.  Auditors Report; and

iii. Annual performance Report.




GTEDAasa Municipal Entity of the GTM, established to implement economic development within
the GTM area, derives its legislative mandate first and foremost from Chapter 10 of the Municipal
Finance Management Act, 2006 {Act No. 53 of 2003) and its Regulations read with Chapter 8A of
the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No 32 of 2000) and its Regulations. GTEDA also ensures
compliance, 10 the extent applicable, to other legislation governing local government including,
put not limited to the following:

e The Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act. 108 of 1996);

o Local Government: Municipal Demarcation Act, 1998 {Act No. 27 of 1998);

e Local Government: Municipal Property Rates Act, 2004 (Act No. 6 of 2004);

e Local Government. Municipal Structures Act, 1998 (Act No. 117 of 1998}

e Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 (Act no. 75 of 1997);

» Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 2003 (Act No. 53 of 2003);

e Disaster Management Act, 2002 {Act No. 57 of 2002) and its Regulations;

e Division of revenue Act, 6 (Act No. 6 of 2012);

» Employment Equity Act, 1998 (Act No. 55 of 1998};

] lntergovernmenta| Fiscal Relations Act, 1997 {Act No. 97 of 2005);

. Intergovernmentai Relations Eramework Act, 2005 {Act No. 13 of 2005);

e Labour Relations Act, 1995 (Act No. 66 of 1995);

¢ Municipal Fiscal Powers and Functions Act, 2007 {Act No 12 of 2007);

e National Archives Act of South Africa Act, 1996 (Act No.'43 of 1996);

e Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 {Act No. 85 of 1993);

« Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, 2000 {Act No. 5 of 2000) and its

Regulations;

« Preventionand Combating of Corrupt Activities Act, 2004 (Act No. 12 of 2004});

» Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 {Act No. 2 of 2000);

e Promotionof Administration to Justice Act, 2000 (Act No.3 of 2000);

e Promotion of Equality and prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act, 2000 (Act No. 4 of

2000);

o Skills Development Act, 1998 (Act No. 97 of 1998);

e Skills Development Levy Act, 1999 Act No. 9 of 1999;

o Traditional Leadership and Governance Framework Act, 2003 (Act No. 41 of 2003);




1.1. VISION

To be a self-financing Agency that leads in developing an inclusive, thriving and sustainable

economy for the people of the Greater Tzaneen Municipal area.

1.2. MISSION

r Tzaneen Municipal area, facilitate in innovative

We strive 10 attract investments into the Greate

and efficient ways, development of an economy that is inclusive, sustainable and resilient. We

believe in the potential of our people 10 drive their own development.

1.3. VALUES

e our actions at all levels and are integrated

We subscribe to the following set of values that guid
into our way of working:
i Integrity
ii. Empowerment
jli. Transparency and accountability
jv.  Innovation and excellence

v. Partnering

1.4, STRATEGIC OBIJECTIVES

Support entrepreneurs in accessing investment capital;

i.
mate in the Greater Tzaneen Municipal area and

ii. Promoie a conducive investment cli

attract suitable investors;

jii. Promote entrepreneurship as a career of choice among the youth;

sinesses to ensuré growth and

iv. Provide information, advice and support to bu

sustainability;

v. Develop effective partnerships with economic development role-players;

vi. Develop economic research and analytical capacity of GTEDA;

vii. Improve organisat‘lonal skills, systems and processes; and

vili.  Acquire and manage assets and other facilities.




FOCUS AREAS

i. Agriculture and Agribusiness

pal area has a competitive advantage in

ater Tzaneen Munici
his sector and finding new

es for leveraging 1

griculture, the Gre

siderable opportuniti

in terms of A

Agriculture with con

entrepreneurs particularlv in Agribusiness.




while manufacturing in Greater Tzaneen contributes 38% of the district economy, it is on the
hasis of a strong endowment in natural resources that it becomes @ strategic sector to target for

development.

The Provincial Employment and Growth Strategy has identified that the economic decline in
manufacturing in some municipal areas is as a result of insufficient attention given to the

potential development contribution of industries.

There appears to be general consensus that tourism demand is well below what would be

expected from an area with such outstanding natural.

The GTM area has tremendous natural and heritage potential. Tourism is identified in the GTM's
iDP as one of the sectors with high economic potential together with Agriculture and Agro-
processing. There appears to pe general consensus that tourism demand is well below what

would be expected from an area with such outstanding natural resources/ endowment.




iv. Property Development

The availability of land in the GTM presents a potential advantage for GTEDA to create
partnerships in the development of office parks, shopping centres and residential development.

This would also contribute to the self-sustainability of the Agency in the long term.

The development of shopping centres remains an area of high impact in terms of creation of jobs
in the GTM area. Four shopping centres have been identified and the private sector has
responded well; coming forward with the intention to invest in this sector. The scenic view of the

town ‘Tzaneen’ creates an atmosphere that is conducive for both residential and office space.

v. Green Energy

GTEDA has the potential to play a key role in rolling out the Renewable Energy Economy (REE)
programme within the municipal area. some of the renewable energy supply sources include:

a) Biogas; '

b} Concentrated solar power;

c) Landfill gas;:

d}  Solar water heaters; and

e) Solar photovoltaic.

This is in line with Provincial Employment Growth and Development Plan that looks at green
economy within the context of “agriculture, manufacturing, construction, installation, and
maintenance, as well as scientific and technical, administrative, and service-related activities that

contribute substantially to preserving or restoring environmental quality”.




1.6. FOREWORD gY CHAIRPERSON

In keeping with our duty to provide strategic direction for the Agency, we as a Board identified
five key focus areas within which our endeavours to grow the economy of Greater Tzaneen
should largely be premised. We made a major announcement to our clients and stakeholders that
greater Tzaneen presents immeasurable opportunities in;

e Agriculture and Agri-processing,

» Manufacturing,

e Tourism and Heritage conservation

s Property development and

e Greenenergy.
The successful pursuit of these focus areas would make us relevant to national, provincial
economic development goals as well as the strategies of our shareholder = the Greater Tzaneen
Municipality. We therefore remain steadfastly focused on these and it is pleasing to note some
progress emerging from this sharp focus. This report will shed mare light thereon.

GTEDA has once again amidst all hurdles been able to register humbling progress in all respects.

Sha reholder Relations
Shareholder representatives attend Board and Committee meetings; and provide the Board
information as much as they represent the aspirations of the Board in Council. We therefore

appreciate the support we receive from the Mayor and GTM Council during the previous financial

year.

Board

The Board of Directors has been diligent in executing its fiduciary duties remaining intact and
convening as is required. It was however sad to receive the resignation of Mr Mike Gardner for
health reasons. His massive contribution to Board activities at large is being missed - specifically
with regard to the area of tourism. The hoard lost another member (Mr Mike Gardner,) on
voluntary resignation in November 2016. We recognise, and greatly appreciate his invaluable
contribution, more specifically in the tourism arena.

| am confident that it is the demonstrated continued commitment of the Board that is helping
steer GTEDA towards meeting its strategic objectives = and does so with the utmost transparency

and accountability.
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Finance

GTEDA has, as has pecome customary, peen able t0 obtain the 9" unqualified audit opinion from
the Auditor-General of South Africa {AGSA). | would like to commend the CEQ, his team and
indeed the Board for demonstrating the greatest respect of public funds. In the midst of
tremendous scarcity in the country and in the world, this should put us in good stead in the eyes

of our shareholders, stakeholders and potential investors and partners.

The Board has again, over and above previous audits by AGSA, been able to obtain the nineth
unqualified audit opinion. This demonstrated our greatest respect of public funds and our

continued commitment to usé these resources inan accountable manner.

Opportunities and Challenges

GTEDA still believes that the potential role that could be played by SMMEs in growing our
economy should as well not be underestimated. We therefore would and must continue to do all
in our power in partnership with our strategic stakeholders to support SMMES as economic
drivers and potential job creators. |

As an Agency We work very closely with the GTM Council to ensure that projects as outlined in
the IDP are implemented. Council members responsible for local economic development also
attend GTEDA Board meetings and strategic planning sessions to provide input.

The most critical challenge faced by the Agency, which limits its capacity to execute its mandate

as required, is insufficient funding.

The Agency has an opportunity to acquire assets in order to improve its balance sheet.

We remain hopeful and pelieve that GTEDA will deliver its mandate and yield positive results.

Acknowledgement

For the strides we have made in the past year, we remain indebted to the:
s Provincial government

e GTM—Council

e GTM-Management

o GTEDA-Board

. GTEDA—Manage'ment and staff

e All Stakeholders; and

e Communitiesat large.
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Mr. MZ Mawasha

Chairperson of the Board
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1.7. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY/ OVERVIEW BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFHCE;
The 2016/17 would be remembered amongst the most successful years for GTEDA. The revised
strategy was @ roadmap that ensured the agency makes positive strides from July 2016. This
manifested itself in the overall performance increasing from a paltry 32% in the 2015/16 financial
year 10 79% for the year under review. Details on our performance are contained under the

projects management unit report.

Achievements

As indicated above, ouf performance has improved due to the hard work that management and
staff put. We have implemented a number of key projects as reflected in our performance report
below.
e Investment attracted was R2.4 million, of which R1 000 000.00 was funding facilitated for
Monye-le-shako through the Department of Rural Development and land Reform
e R1 .4 million has been facilitated through the \DC for the establishment of a Vexospark
digital college
o GTM council approved a house which would be renovated for office use by the agency.
o 21 SMMEs have been capacitated
« Facilitated R100 000 funding by Co-operative Banks Development Agency to train Greater
Tzaneen Financial Service Co-operative members
e GTEDA received an unqualified Audit opinion from AGSA
e GTEDAIN partnership with Inspire SA successfully hosted an investor conference
e GTEDAIN partnership with GTM LED unit successfully hosted an Agric Expo and Mayors

Golf event wherein funds were raised to assist emerging farmers.

Corporate social Investment
GTEDA In partnership with CommuneP successfully hosted the youth entrepreneurship and
career guidance events whereby debates on “antrepreneurship vs. formal employment” and

career exhibitions were held respectively.

Challenges

Our vacancy rate is high and management together with the Board aré finalising the job
evaluation process 10 ensure that critical positions are filled in the new financial year.

The Agency strives to fully deliver on its Strategic Objectives however, insufficient funding from

the parent Municipality remains a deterrent.

13




Interventions

We continue 10 support our co-operatives and SMMEs 1o achieve their goals. we will also

continue to invite investors to the GTM and package opportunities t0 attract investments

Wwe have signed spveral agreements with transactional advisors who will assist the agency to
package economic development opportunities in the area and source funding for such. Plans are

in place to work with the shareholder 10 unlock land and fast track the turnaround time to

approve investment proposals.

We will continue to conduct intensive outreach programmes like Road Shows t0 reach out to our

communities and try as much as we can 1o convert our communities’ businesses dreams into

reality.

Acknowledgements
GTEDA would not have achieved all the above had it not been for the following who deserve My
sincere acknowledgment:

e The Greater Tzaneen Municipality’s support in all aspects.

e The tireless and strategic support of GTEDA Board of Directors.

» Management and Staff of GTEDA for their formidable commitment to take GTEDA to

greater heights.

e The Greater Tzaneen business, Civil Society Organisation, our Stakeholders and the

community at large.

Mr. K} Maphoto

Chief Executive Officer
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2.1. GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

GTEDAis committed to uphold and_maintain the highest standards of governance with respect to

the management of public resources.

GTEDA recognises that conducting its affairs with integrity will ensure that the public and its
parent municipality, the Greater Tzaneen Municipality, have confidence in its work. To that end
GTEDA’s Board of Directors and executive management team subscribe to the governance
principles set out in the code of conduct for directors, referred to in section 93L of the Municipal
Systems Act, circular 63 of the MFMA and King IV Report. The Board also actively reviews and
enhances the systems of internal control and governance in place to ensuré that GTEDA is
managed ethically and withih prudently determ.ined risk parameters. During the period under
review, the Board put in place 3 system of assessments in compliance with requirements of the

Company’s ACt, MSA and MFMA

implementation of King IV Report
The Board and Management aré committed to the principles of openness, integrity and
accountability advocated by the King IV report. In addition, the Social and Ethics Committee

performed a compliance check using the principles of King IV.

Corporate Citizenship

The Board is responsibie for ensuring that GTEDA protects, enhances and invests in the local

economy, community and the natural environment.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Standards

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the entity complies with applicable laws and adheres to
binding rules, codes and standards. The Board is also committed to ensuring that international
standards are adhered to.

This is also evidenced by our continuous and consistent positive audit outcomes. investors and
the broader communities need assurance that GTEDA has good governance structures in place 10

effectively and economically utilise entrusted resources.

15




\2.2, BOARD cOMPOSITION

BOARD OF DiRECT ORS

The Board ensures compliance with the requirements of a responsible and accountable Board as

recommended in Chapter 2 of the King lll Report.

Board Composition: The Board was appointed through a formal process and placed under the
jeadership of a Chairperson who is an independent non-executive Director. Board Members
cornprises of individual with different skills and expertise.

Far the period under review, the Board is comprised of seven {7) Board Members subsequent to

three (3) resignations.

16




BOARD OF DIRECT ORS

Mr. MZ Mawasha : /
Adv. ES Maake
Board Deputy Chairperson

Board Chairperson

Ms MI Moakamela Mr. MV Gardner ' Ms MJ Mak
Board Member Board Member Bcs:ard M:me:::e:n

Mrs. MF Mushwana Mr. B Pretorius
Board Member Board Member Ms BL Mathebula
Board Member

17
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2.3, BOARD TERM

were appointedon 2 fixed term of five (5) years, commenc

ing 01 July 2015 ending 30

Directors

june 2020,

TENDANCE

30ARD MEETINGS AT

Board Chairperson

Adv. ES Maake goard Deputy Chairperson

Ms BL Mathebula Board Member m

*Mr. MV Gardner resigned from the Board with effect from 10 November 2016.

12.5. BOARD EVALUATION

GTEDA has approved the annual self-assessment (3607} review P
implemented for both the Board and its respective Committees.

it
i

|

rocess for the Board which was

developed and

2.6. BOARD REMUNERATION

Linked to the responsibilities of HR & REMCO are issues relating 10 remuneration of the Board of

Directors, the CEQ, Managers and staff in general. Despite its limited financial resources, GTEDA

e with the National Treasury.

strives {0 remunerate its Board of Directors responsibly in lin

2.7. BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board continued to detegate certain of its duties to Board Committees which were all chaired

by independent non-executive directors.
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Deliberations of the Committees do not reduce the individual responsibilities and collective duties

responsibilities of the Board members in regard to their fiduciary duties and responsibilities; they are

to exercise due care and judgment in accordance with their statutory obligations.

The Committees have an independent role operating to oversee and make of the recommendations
to Board for its consideration and final approvat, However, the Committee does not assume the

functions of management, which remain the responsibility of the Chief Executive Officer and other

senior management.

19
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5.7.1. PROJECTS AND INVESTMENT COMMITTEE (PIC)

The PIC takes responsibility for the business issues associated with GTEDA projects and for
recommending budgetary strategy (project budgeting and accounting), defining and realising

benefits, and monitoring risks, quality and timeliness of projects.

For the period under review, attendance of Members of the PIC was recorded as follows:

| Mr. MZ Mawasha | éhairperson 7 4 01;4 |
Adv.ES Maake Member 4 of 4
Mr. B Pretorius Member 4 of 4
Ms MJ Makapan Member 40f4
Mr. MV Gardner Member 10f4
Resigned
|

in conclusion, GTEDA is mindful of the fact that there is a need to continue to strive for
improvement in the interest of all our Stakeholders, that is mainly, the communities that we
serve. The PIC has been astablished to oversee the identification and implementation of Projects

and Investments which informs to a larger extent the core Mandate of the Agency.

Mr. MZ Mawasha

Chairperson: Projects and Investments Committee

20
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2.7.2. FINANCE AND RISK COMMITTEE {FRC)

The Finance and Risk Committee is responsible for ensuring that GTEDA’s Internal Audit function
is independent and has the necessary resources and standing authority within the Agency to

enable Internal Audit to discharge its duties.

Erom the inception of the financial year, GTEDA has had to employ the internal Audit (1A) services
of the GTM's internal audit division. The |A department reports to GTM'’s Audit Committee
functionally, and to GTM's CFO administratively. The Head of internal Audit has a direct reporting
line to the Chairperson of GTM’s Audit Committee. The Finance and Risk Committee’s is expected
to meet at least four times per annum, but has the authority to call for special additional
meetings as and when necessary. The FRC also attends quarterly GTM's Audit Committee

meetings.

Five (5) FRC meetings were held during the 2016/2017 financial year. The deliberations of all FRC
meetings were reported at all board meetings and the minutes incorporated in the board pack.

For the period under review,

attendance of Members of the FRC was recorded as follows:

Mrs. MF Mushwana

Mr. B Pretorius

Ms MI Moakamela

Ms BL Mathebula

The following key activities were conducted:

e Reviewed the effectiveness of internal control systems;

e Considered the risk areas of the Agency's operations covered in the scope of internal
and external audits;

s Considered accounting and auditing concerns identified as a result of internal and
axternal audits;

e Assessed the adequacy, reliability and accuracy of financial information provided by
management;

e Assessed compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements;

» Reviewed the effectiveness of the internal audit function,

e Considered all factors and risks that may affect the integrity of the annual reporting;

21




s Reviewed and recommended the Annual Report for approval by the Board

e Reviewed the financial statements and reporting for proper and complete disclosure
of timely, refiable and consistent information and confirmed that accounting policies
used are appropriate;

e Reviewedthe expertise, resources and experience of the Agency'’s finance function;

e Provided a channel of communication between the Board and management, internal
auditors, external auditors;

e Received regular reporting from the AG {AG Action Plans} and monitored timely
resolutions of issues or concerns by management;

e Ensured that the Risk Register was appropriate 10 address all significant risks faced by

the Agency.

The finance and Risk Committee minutes that there were no material instances brought to its
attention. This assumes that no control hreakdown occurred in the Agency’s procedures and
controls functioning, leading to losses Of contingencies or uncertainties requiring disclosure in the
AFS. Management took the appropriate corrective action on thase deficiencies prought to the

attention of management as audit queries

Having considered, analysed and reviewed the information provided by management, Internal
Audit and External Audit, the Finance and Risk Committee confirms that:

e Throughout the financial year, no material findings were brought to the attention of
the committee therefore suggesting that the internal controls of the Agency were
effective and appropriate 10 safeguard the Agency's assets;

e Proper accounting records were maintained, and appropriate policies were applied;

« The financial statements comply, in most material respects, with the relevant
provisions of the MFMA and Generally Recommended Accounting Practices (GRAP);

e The external auditors’ skills, independence, audit planning as well as overall

performance were acceptable.

Annual Financial Statements

The committee recommended the approval of the Annual Financial Statements to the Board after
having reviewed them, ensuring that adequate disclosure and fair presentation had been

achieved.

22
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that the financial statements as submitted be ap

Mrs. MF Mushwana

Chairperson: Finance and Risk Committee
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2.7.3. HUMAN RESOURCE AND REMUENRATION COMMITTEE {HR &

REMCO}
The HR & REMCO s comprised entirely of independent Non-Executive Directors and is entrusted

with the responsibility 10 deal with Human Resource responsibilities and determining the broad

remuneration policies of the Agency. This includes the determination of the remuneration of

Chief Executive Officer, senior management and staff in general. It also proposes fees for Non-

Executive directors, which are then tabled for approval by the Council of GTM. The Chief

Executive Officer attends Board and Board Committee meetings on invitation and does not attend

meetings where his own performance and remuneration is being discussed.

HR & REMCO is charged with the responsibility of identifying suitable candidates for
directorships, and make recommendations to the Board which subsequently makes

recommendations 10 the Parent Municipality. in this regard the Committee further advises on the

composition of the Board, and the balance hetween executive and Non-Executive Directors.

The Committee further provides advise to the Board on issues of succession planning, particutarly

in relation to the Chief Executive Officer and managers reporiing directly to him/her and the

Board itself.

Eor the period under review, attendance of Members of the HR & REMCO was recorded as

follows:

Ms J Makapan 1 Chairperson

Adv.ES Maake
Ms MI Moakamela
s BL Mathebula

The Committee does not assume the functions of management; however, for the financial year

under review it performed the following roles without limitation:

Review of Organisational Strategy and Organisational Structure:

e Review of the Organisational Structure in line with GTEDA Strategy and proper

recommendation made to Board and was subsequently approved.

24




Overseeing the maintenance of a remuneration philosophy to promote the achievement
of the strategic objectives and organisational performance in line with GTEDA’s
objectives. '

Review of the Human Resources Policies in line with the Strategy, and ensure consistent

application throughout GTEDA at alt employee levels.

performance Management

Ensure that the role and function of the CEO Is formalised, and his performance is

evaluated against set targets.

Ensure that GTEDA performance Management System is performed throughout GTEDA at

all employee levels in line with Best Practice.

Ms MJ Makapan

Chairperson: Human Resource and Remuneration Committee

25
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2.6.4. SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE {SEC)

The purpose of SEC is to monitor activities with regards 10 legislation and legal requirements and

draw the matters t0 the attention of the board.

Composition (comprises of prescribed Directors)

The Committee consists of four (4} members of the Board of Directors (including the

Chairperson of the Committee) who were nominated by the Board.

Responsibility

¢ Conformstoa well written and appropriate code of conduct endorsed by the

board to ensure good communication device which alerts all employees to ethical
standards and guidelines for acceptable behaviour. Such standards promotes
ethical decision making and assists in resolving ethical dilemmas that arise.

e Monitors the organisation’s activities, having regard to any applicable legislation,
other legal requirements or prevailing codes of best practice, with regard to
matters relating to:

1. Social and economic development, including the organisation’s standing in terms of the goals
and purposes of the Employment Equity Act and the Broad Based Black Economic
Empowerment Act.

2. Good corporate citizenship including the organisation’s:

{a) promotion of equality, prevention of unfair discrimination, and reduction of

corruption;

(b} Contribution 10 development of the communities in which its activities are

predominantlv conducted or within which its products or services are predominantlv
marketed; and
{c} Record of the support and funding through employee involvement, sponsorships and
donations to non-profit educational, heaith, charitable and social organisations.
3. The environment, health and public safety, including the impact of the organisation’s
activities and of its products or services;
4. Consﬁmer relationships, including the organisation’s advertising, public relations and

compliance with consumer protection laws; and

5. Labour and empowerment including:

26



{a) The Organisation’s standing in terms of the International Labour Organization

protocol on decent work and working conditions; and

(b} The Organisation’s employment relationships and its contribution towards the

educational development of its employees.

6. Draw matters within its mandate to the attention of the Board as occasion requires;

7. Reportto Board at the Organisat‘ton’s quarterly meetings on the matters within its mandate

including compliance with the terms of reference; and

8. Promotesan environment where open communication is expected and protected.

For the period under review, attendance of nembers of the SEC was recorded as follows:

Adv.ES Maake Chairpersén

Ms Ml Moakamela

s BL Mathebula

Member

Resigned

ur role in ensuring compliance in both substance and form with the

We continue to strengthen 0
actices throughout the

recommendations of the King Report IV and to monitor governance pr

Agency in line with applicable and relevant legisiative prescripts. As we continue to grow, we also
increase the scope of our legistative mandate
the Committee's activities extends to all relevant operations of GTEDA and is

elegation of authority framework.

In conclusion,

subject to the goard’s approved d

Adv.ES Maake

Chairperson: 5ocial and Ethics Committee
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3,1. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

GTEDA has the Chief Executive Officer who operates within an approved framework of
delegations of authority. He is supported by the Project Manager; Finance and Risk Officer {onan
Acting basis); and HR and Administration Officer (on an Acting basis), for the day to day
management. The Board is kept informed of progress through regular reporting during quarterly

meetings, special meetings and other means as may be agreed from time to time.

3.2. HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT

The Human Resources Management (HRM) unit falls within the Finance and Administration

Division and reports to the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ).

The Human Resource Management Unit continues to ensure that progress on implementation of

the organisational objectives for the period under review is made.
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3.2.1. ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE

GTM COUNCIL

Mz MAWASHA

Chairperson

BT i__ -~ "’"'r";gf'"'“‘“ 1 ’;';&23?537

‘1 ES MAAKE 3 | MF B

i i 2

| Deputy EMUSHWANA’;:; PRETORIUS}%

| Chairperson 4 | member #| Member :
person & 4 T | Membper .

JU———)

X CHIEF EXECUTIVE

MAKAPAN

OFFICER
K3 Maphoto
1 i
1 X FINANCE & 1X |;!R0]ECT
ADMINISTRATION MANAGER
MANAGER MW Mulaudzi
Vacant
. . f'upaosm -
1X FINANCE & 1 X OFFICE o -
COORDINATOR
ADM!NISTRATION SECRETARYI PA MC Hiokwe
okw
OFFICER ME Modiba J
Vacant

1 X OFFICE
ASSISTANT

NM Shipalana

1 X RECEPTIONIST

MM Makgobatlou

T x PROJECT. |
SUPPORT OFFICER '

B

Vacant
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GTEDA strives 1o ensure that it employs and maintains a staff complement consisting of the
highest calibre of individuals who subscribe to iis values and are committed to delivering
sustainable long-term performance. We are currently reviewing staff benefits with a view 10

retain and motivate employees.

Employees are paid based on a total cost to company packages and receive an annual 13™

Cheque. The CEO qualifies for a performance bonus which is informed by the performance of the

Agency.

GTEDA remain dedicated 1o quality, excellence and continuous improvement. we balance
requests to share information clearly and openly while respecting the security of confidential and

personal information entrusted to the Agency.

Ms MM Makgobatiou

Human Resource and Administration Officer {Acting}
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e

3.3. PROJECT MANAGEMENT
At the core of GTEDA’s mandate is the Project Management Unit (PMU) which oversees the
implementation of strategic objectives of the Agency geared towards resource mohilisation,

SMME support and investment attraction in the GTM area.

The PMU ensured that the new strategy Is implemented maximally and therefore has turned
around the performance of the Agency from 2 paltry 32% prior year to 79% during the financial
year under review. The unit facilitated signing of Memoranda of agreements with strategic
partners 10 fast track resourceé mobilisation and investment attraction in the GTM area as
mandated by council. The unit will continue to tap on the services of experienced Transactional

Advisors to package and resource viable and sustainable projects which would yield economic

spin-offs.

Key to driving the Agency’s mandate is strategically aligned focus areas which have the potential

to drive economic development in the GTM area.
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ANNUAL PERFORMANCE

procedure for performance Reporting during 2016/17 Financial Year

GTEDA utllises an electronic reporting system (Action Assist) to promote accurate and timeous

reporting. The system allows GTEDA to report performance 0N a monthly basis; by uploading

supporting documentation onto the system for validation. The internal Audit Division utilised the

electronic system to audit the performance reported by GTEDA. The actual performance

reported on the system, and presented in this report, has been colour coded as follows:

Coding of Results

KPI Not Met

pl Almost Met

| Green KPI Met
Green2 Kpl Well Met

Blue kp| Extremely well Met

33
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The performance of GTEDA is reflected below, reflecting an overall achievement fevel of 79% a
marked improvement from the 32% achieved in 2015/16.
- GTEDA

7.14% 7.145%0

14,29%

71.43%
Economlc Growth KPA Summary of Results for 2016/ 17 . : j
' Colo.ur Key to the Coiour Codes ' No of KPIslProlects = % in Eaiiegdry
N 5T Not Met 1 7.14%
KPI Almost Met 2 14.29%
KPl Met 10 71.43%
KPl Well Met 1 7.14%
B KP| Extremely Well Met 0 0
Total KPIs 14
PROJECTS

Below is a list of PIC projects per focus areas that were implemented by the Project Management

Unit.

Aquaculture (Fish fdrming Agriculture and Agro Facilitated an application for
for commercial use). processing funding through the DTl to assist term
Baltiva {project Initiator) to set up

an aquaculture project in the GTM

area.

All compliance requirements have

heen finalised.

Médlum-long
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Tzaneen dam resort
Business and feisure resort

development.

Tourism and heritage

conservation &

Property development

Concept plan and proposal
presented to GTEDA and GTM

council on the proposed project

Medium-long

term

GTEDA HUB

e Monye-le-shako-
Production of leather
based products (shoes,

belts and bags).

e Bus conversion co-

operative

Manufacturing

Manufacturing

Facilitated R1 000 000 funding
from the Department of Rural
Development and Land
Reform for purchase of
materials and machines.
Facilitated the registration and
successful incorporation of the
mentioned project into the
GTEDA hub, the co-operative
covers new and repairs old car

and bus seats

Medium-long

term.

Medium -long

term

Project type

Focus area

Work done

Project Term

e Natural Mystique

Manufacturing

Facilitated the incorporation
of the business in the hub, 20
learnership students are
trained on a one-year arts and
crafts project funded by
CATHSSETA.

Short-medium

term

GTFM

Information and
communications

technology {ICT)

Facilitated the resuscitation of
the community radio station,
AGM, Board election and
funding by MDDA.

Medium-long

term

Mr. MW Mulaudzi

Projects Manager
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3.5, FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
We are pleased to present the 2016/17 Audited Annual Financial Statements. The audit opinion
presented by the AGSA provides reasonable assurance that the financial statements were

presented fairly, in all material respects in accordance with the financial reporting framework.

GTM allocated grant funding of R 5, 906,832 to GTEDA for the 2016/17 Financial Year as
compared to R 5,563,950 which was allocated in the previous year. Despite challenges faced by
the agency in the year under review, these ranged from managing cost increases from the
insufficient funding. The Agency strives for a sound financial position and has achieved an

unqualified audit opinion.

Financial plans are in place to mitigate significant doubt on the Agency’s ability to continue as a

going concern; and financial statements are prepared in line with applicable accounting policies.

The Agency remains committed to a thoughtful stewardship of its resources for the years ahead.

Ms ME Modiba

Finance and Risk Officer (Acting)
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

{Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financlal Staternents for the year ended 30 June 2017

Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval

The accounting officer is required by the Municipal Finance Management Act {Act 56 of 2003), to maintain adequate
accounting records and is responsible for the content and integrity of the financial statements and related financial
information included in this report. 1t is the responsibllity of the accounting officer to ensure that the financial statements fairly
present the state of affairs of the municipal entity as at the end of the financial year and the results of its operations and cash
flows for the period then ended. The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion ch the financial
staterments and was given unrestricted access to all financial records and related data.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice
{GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.

The financial staternents are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable
and prudentjudgments and estimates.

The accounting officer acknowledges that he uliimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by
the municipal entity and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the
accaunting officer to meat these responsibilities, the accounting officer sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing
the risk of error of deficit in a cost effective manner. The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a
clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable
levet of risk, These controls are monitored throughout the municipal entity and all employees are required to maintain the
highest ethical standards in ensuring the municipal entity's business is conducted in a manner that in ali reasonable
circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the municipal entity is on identifying, assessing,
managing and mon itering alt known forms of risk across the municipal entity. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated,
the municipal entity endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.

The accounting officer is of the opinien, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of
internal control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of tha financial
statements. However, any system of internal financiai control can pravide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or deficit.

The accounting officer has reviewed the municipal entity's cash flow forecast for the year to 30 Juna 2018 and, in the fight of
this review and the current financial position, he Is satisfied that the municipal entity has or has access to adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foresaeable future.

The municipal entity is wholly dependent on the Greater Tzaneen Municipality for continued funding of operations. The
financial statements are prepared on the pasls that the municipal entity is a going concern and that the Greater Tzanesn
Municipality has neither the intention nor the need to liquidate or curtall materiaily the scale of the municipal entity.

The external auditors are responsible for indepandently reviewing and reporting on the municipai entity's financial
statements. The financial statements have been examined by the municipal entity's external auditors and their report is

presented on page 7.

The financial statements set out on pages 5 to 52, which have been prepared on the gaing concern basts, were approved by
the accounting officer on 31 August 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

&‘.)Ll C"QO
(g
K.J. Maphoto

Chief Executive Officer




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
(Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Chief Executive Officer's Report

The Chief Executive Officer has pleasure in submitting his report on the annual financial statements of Greater Tzaneen
Economic development Agency for the year ended 30 June 2017.

1. Nature of business
Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Py)ldisa municipal entity incarporated in the Republic of South Africa
established in terms of the Companies Act by the Greater Tzaneen Municipality (GGTM) with the assistance of industrial

Development Corparation {IDC) in order to project manage urban and rural regeneration of the GTM's territary with a view to
promote economic development and investment attraction,

2. Review of financlal results and activities

The financial statements have been prapared in accordance with South African Staternents of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any intarpretations, guidelines and directives Issued by the Accounting Standard
Soard.

3, Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable toa geing concerm, This basis
presumes that funds wilt be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assels and settiement of
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business.

The ability of the municipal entity to continue as a going concam is dependent on 2 nurmber of factors. The most significant
of these is that the accounting officer continues to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the municipal entity.

Subsequently @ comfort letter was sourced from Greater Tzanesn Municipality as a commitment to fund the entity for the
2047/18 financial year,

4. Contributed capital

There were no changes in the authorised or issued share capital of the municipal entity during the year under review.
§. Subsequent evenis

The chief executive officer is not aware of any matter of circumsfance arising since the end of the financial year.

6. Directors ‘

The directors in office at the date of this report are:

Board members

M.Z. Mawasha (Chairperson)

E.S. Maake (Deputy Chairperson)

M.E. Mushwana

M.V. Gardner (Resigned 10 November 2016)
M.1. Moakamela

B.J. Pretorius

B.L. Mathebula

M.J. Makapan

7. Controlling entity

The municipal entity's controliing entity is the Greater Tzaneen Municipality.

8. Auditors

Auditor General of South Afica (AGSA) will continue in offica for the next financial period.
9. Frultless and wasteful expenditure

The directors are not aware of any fruitless and wasteful expenditure which have been incurrad during the year under review.




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

{Registration nurmber 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Chief Executive Officer's Report

40. \rregular expenditure

The diractors are not aware of any irregular expenditures which have been'incurred during the year under review.

44. Financial review

Greater Tzaneen Municipality approved and allocated a budget of R 500G 832 to GTEDA as grant funding for the financial
year under review, compared to R 5 563 950 that was allocated for prior year. The overali expenditure amounts to R6082
077 which is 92 per cent of the budget in terms of spending pattern; the expenditure includes Project costs of R 650 835 as
compared to R 484 889 for prior year. The varianca is mainly due t0 virements that were done through mid-year budget
review given that projects are core business. Employee cost amount to R3 572 468 as compared to R3 645 787, this is due
fo the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer during the financial year under review, Tha agency incurred a deficit of

R 7 213 as compared fo 2 surplus of R 242 278 for prior year, this was mainly due to ailocation of output VAT on grant
received.
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The Accounting Officer
Office No. 6

Cascade Building
Sapekoe Drive
Tzaneen

0850

30 November 2017
Reference: 61442REG16-17

Dear Sir

Report of the Auditor-General on the financial statements and other legal and regulatory
requirements of Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency for the year ended 30

June 2017

1. The above-mentioned report of the Auditor-General is submitted herewith in terms of section
21(1) of the Public Audit Act of South Africa read in conjunction with section 188 of the
Constitution of the Republic of South Africa section 121(3) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act of South Africa (MFMA )

2 We have not yet received the other information that will be included in the annual report with
the audited financial statements and have thus not been able to establish whether there are
any inconsistencies between this information and the audited financial statements and the
reported performance against pre-determined objectives. You are requested to supply this
information as soon as possible. Once this information is received it will be read and should
any inconsistencies be identified these will be communicated to you and you will be
requested to make the necessary corrections. Should the corrections not be made we will
amend and reissue the audit report.

3. In terms of section 121(4) of the MFMA you are required to include the audit report in the
municipal entity's annual report to be tabled.

4. Until the annual report is tabled as required by section 127(2) of the MFMA the audit report
is not a public document and should therefore be treated as confidential. ,

5. Prior to printing or copying the annual report which will include the audit report you are
required to do the following:

e Submit the final printer's proof of the annual report to the relevant senior manager of the
Auditor-General of South Africa for verification of the audit-related references in the audit
report and for confirmation that the financial statements and other information are those
documents that have been read and audited. Special care should be taken with the page
references in your report, since an incorrect reference could have audit implications.

¢ The signature Auditor-General in the handwriting of the auditor authorised to sign the
audit report at the end of the hard copy of the audit report should be scanned in when
preparing to print the report. This signature, as well as the place and date of signing and
the Auditor-General of South Africa's logo, should appear at the end of the report, as in

Audifing to build public confidence

AuditorGensral of South A

x: +27 {0)15 283 9400 » www.agsa.co.z0

Private Bag X933% Polokwane 0700 limpopo *Docex 94 = Tel: +27 {0}15 283 9300 =Fa



Report of the auditor-general to Limpopo provincial legislature and
the council of Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency

ﬁ%epm’t on the audit of the finangial statements

Opinion

1. | have audited the financial statements of the Greater Tzaneen Economic Development
Agency set out on pages ... to ..., which comprise the statement of financial position as
at 30 June 2017, and the statement of financial performance, statement of net assets
and cash flow statement and the statement of comparison of budget information with
actual information for the year then ended, as well as the notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

2. Inmy opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the entity as at 30 June 2017, and its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with South African standard of Generally
Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the
Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA)
and Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 2016 ( Act No.3 of 2016) (DORA).

Basis for opinion

3. | conducted my audit in accordance with the Internationat Standards on Auditing {ISAs).
My responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor-general's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of my report.

4. |am independent of the municipal entity in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants (IESBA
code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in South Africa.
| have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements

and the IESBA code.

5. | believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion.

Emphasis of matter

6. |draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Restatement of corresponding figures

7. As disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June
2016 have been restated as a result of an error in the financial statements of the
municipal entity at, and for the year ended, 30 June 2017.

Other matter

8. | draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
1




Unaudited supplementary schedules

g. The supplementary information set out on pages XX to XX does not form part of the
financial statements andis presented as additional information. | have not audited these
schedule(s) and, accordingly, | do not express an opinion thereon

Responsibilities of the accounting officer for the financial statements

10. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of
the MFMA and DORA and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error.

11. in preparing the financial statements, the accounting officer is responsible for assessing
the entity’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
accounting officer either intends to liguidate the municipal entity or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

12. My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor's report that inciudes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these financial statements.

13. A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
inciuded in the annexure to the auditor’s report. :

[ Report on the audit of the annual performance report ]

Introduction and scope

14. In accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 {Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA)
and the general notice issued in terms thereof | have a responsibility to report material
findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives for
selected objectives presented In the annual performance report. | performed procedures
to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.

15. My procedures address the reported performance information, which must be based on
the approved performance planning documents of the municipal entity. | have not
evaluated the completeness and appropriateness of the performance indicators included
in the planning documents. My procedures also did not extend to any disclosures or
assertions relating to planned performance strategies and information in respect of future
periods that may be included as part of the reported performance information.
Accordingly, my findings do not extend to these matters.

2




16. | evaluated the usefulness and reliability of the reported performance information in
accordance with the criteria developed from the performance management and reporting
framework, as defined in the general notice, for the following selected objectives
presented in the annual performance report of the municipal entity for the year ended

30 June 2017:

Objectives Pages in the annual
performance report
Objective LED 01 - Increased investment in GTM economy X —X
Objective LED 02 — Create a stable and enabling X=X
E\vironment by attracting suitable investors

17. | performed procedures {o determine whether the reported performance information was
properly presented and whether performance was consistent with the approved
performance planning documents. | performed further procedures to determine whether
the indicators and related targets were measurable and relevant, and assessed the
reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it was valid,

accurate and complete.

18. The material findings in respect of the usefulness and reliability of the selected objectives
are as follows:

Objective LED 01 — Increased investment in GTM economy

Indicator

19. The municipal entity did not have an adequate record keeping system to enable reliable
reporting on achievement of the indicators listed below. Sufficient appropriate audit
evidence could not be provided in some instances. In other cases, the evidence
provided did not agree to the reported achievements, which resulted in misstatements of
the reported achievements. | was also unable to confirm the reported achievements by
alternative means. Consequently, | was unable to determine whether any further
adjustments were required to the reported achievements.

Performance indicator Reported Audited value
achievement

Number of SMMEs capacitated through 21 0

GTEDA

20. | did not identify any material findings on ihe usefulness and reliability of the reported
performance information for objective LED 2: Create a stable and enabling environment

by attracting suitable investors

Other matter

21. 1 draw attention to the matter below.




Achievement of planned targets

22, Refer to the annual performance report on page(s) X to X; X to x for information on the
achievement of planned targets for the year and explanations provided for the under /
overachievement of a significant number of targets. This information should be
considered in the context of the material findings on the usefulness and reliability of the

reported performance information in paragraph(s} X; X; X of this report.

rﬂemw‘t on audit of compliance with legislation J

Introduction and scope

23. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof | have a
responsibllity to report material findings on the compliance of the municipal entity with
specific matters in key legislation. | performed procedures to identify findings but not to

gather evidence to express assurance.

24. The material findings in respect of the compliance criteria for the applicable subject
matters are as follows:

Annual financial statements, performance and annual reports

25. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects
in accordance with the requirements of section 122 of the MFMA.

Material misstatements of liabilities identified by the auditors in the submitted financial
statement were subsequently corrected and the supporting records were provided
subsequently, resulting in the financial statements receiving an ungualified audit opinion.

ﬁntemai control deficiencies

26. | considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, reported
performance information and compliance with applicable iegislation; however, my
objective was not to express any form of assurance thereon. The matters reported below
are limited to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the basis for
opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance

with legislation included in this report.

Leadership

27. The accounting officer did not exercise adequate oversight responsibility regarding
financial and performance reporting and compliance and related internal controls.

Financial and performance management

28. The annual financial statements and annual performance report contained numerous
misstatements mainly due to a lack of financial monitoring and review




Governance

ance did not provide adequate oversight over the
| control environment, including financial and performance

s and regulations

29. Those charged with govem
effectiveness of the interna
reporting and compliance with law

,}'/1 b {L/EWVJ

Polokwane

30 November 2017

. GENERAL
s O UTH AFRICA
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Annexure — Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit

1.

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, | exercise professional judgement and
maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the financial statements, and the
procedures performed on reported performance information for selected objectives and
on the municipal entity’s compliance with respect to the selected subject matters.

Financial statements

2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as described in
the auditor's report, | also:

« identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resutting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« obtain an understanding of internal controi relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the municipal entity's internal control.

« evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the accounting officer.

« conclude on the appropriateness of the [board of directors, which constitutes the
accounting officer's use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements. | also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Greater Tzaneen Economic development Agency ability to
continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material unceriainty exists, 1 am
required to draw attention in my auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify the opinion on the financial statements. My conclusions are
pased on the information available to me at the date of the auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause a municipal entity to cease to continue as a
going concern.

« evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the group to express an opinion on the

6




consolidated financial statements. | am responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. | remain solely responsible for my audit opinion.

Communication with those charged with governance

3. | communicate with the accounting officer regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficlencies in internal control that 1 identify during my audit.

4. 1 also confirm to the accounting officer that | have complied with retevant gthicai
requirements regarding independence, and communicate all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my independence and
here applicable, related safeguards.




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2017

Figures in Rand Notes 2017 2016
Restated"

Assets

Current Assets

Receivables fram exchange transactions 3 34 318 37 318

Cash and cash equivalents 4 714 357 1107 842

745 675 1 145 260

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 5 54 560 65 460
intangible assets 6 8063 21665
62623 87125
Total Assets 808 238 1232 385
Liabilitles
Current Liabilities
Payables from exchange transactions 7 308 056 347 232
VAT payable 8 1337 089 1712797
1643 155 2 060 029
Total Liabilities 4 643 155 2 060 029
Net Liabilitles (834 857} (827 644)
Contributed capital 9 100 100
Accumulated deficit (834 957) (827 744)
Total Net Liabilities {834 857) {827 £44)

* Sge Note 24




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

{Registration number 2007/008144/07}
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Nates 2017 2016
Restated*
Revenue
Revenue from axchange transactions
Interast received 43 887 16 255
Other income 11 131 145 44 458
Total revenue from exchange transactions 175 032 60 713
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 17 5 908 B32 5 563 950
Total revenue 10 6 081 864 5624 663
Expenditure
Employee related costs 14 2764610 2 687 671
Remuneration of board members 22 807 858 958 116
Consulting fees 249635 22 099
Depreciation and amortisation 18 32 002 54 010
General Expenses 19 1100 458 727 407
Lease rentals on operating lease 259 963 323137
Project costs 650 835 484 889
Repairs and maintenance 223716 117 248
Social inclusion - 7 808
Total expenditure 6089 077 5382 385
{1 213) 242 278

(Deflcit) surplus for the year

* Sue Nole 24
10




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

{Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement of Changes in Net Assets

Note  Contributed Accumulated Total net
capital surplus/ assets

Figures in Rand (deficit)

Balance at 01 July 2015 100 (oroo022)y (1 069 922)

Changes in net assets

Surplus for the year - 242 278 242 278

Total changes - 242 278 242 278

Opening balance as previously reporied 100 (950 419) {950 319)
Adjustments

Prior year adjustments 24 - 122 675 122 675

Restated® Balance at 01 July 2016 as restated” 100 (827 T44) (827 644)
Changes in net assets

Deficit for the year - (7 213) (7 213)
Total changes - (7 213) (7213}
Balance at 30 June 2017 £00 {834 957) (B34 857)

Note

* See Note 24
11



Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Staterents for the year ended 30 June 2017

Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Rand Note(s} 2017 2016
Restated”
Cash flows from operating activitles
Recelpts
Sale of goods and services 134 145 225 984
Grants 5 906 832 5 563 950
Interest income 43 887 16 255
6 0B4 864 5 806 189
Payments
Employee costs {3 572 468) (3 645 7B6)
Suppliers (zo01482) (1 479 598)
(6473 950} (5125 384}
Net cash flows from operating activitles 12 {389 086) 680 805
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and eqguipment 5 (7 499) -
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {396 588) £80 806
Cash and cash equivaients at the beginning of the year 1 107 942 427 138
4 711 3587 1107943

Cash and cash equivatents at the end of the year

* Ses Note 24
' 12



Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

{Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts

Budget on Cash Basis

Approved Adjustments  Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference
budget on comparable betwsen final
basis budget and

Figures in Rand actual
Statement of Financial Pesformance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange
transacfions
interest received (trading) - - - 43 887 43 887 Note 26
Other incoms . - - 131145 131145 Note 26
Total revenue from exchange - - - 175032 175 032
transactions
Revenue from non-exchange
transactions
Transfer revenue .
Government grants & subsidies 8735000 - 6735000 5906 832 (828 188)  Note 26
Total revenue 6 735 000 - 6 735 000 6 081 864 {653 136)
Expenditure
Personnel {4 802 306) 507574  (4094732) (2764610) 1330122 Note 26
Rernuneration of board members - - - (807 858) {807 858)
Depreciation and amortisation (109 081) 30 000 (79 081) (32 002) 47089  Note 26
Finance costs {22 578) 12 578 {10 000) - 10000  Note 26
Lease rentals on operating lease {312 145) 35639 (276 606) (259 963) 16543  Note 26
Consulting fees {435 000} (178 500) (614 500) (249 635) 364 866
Repairs and maintenance (111 683) {108 117) (219 800) (223716) {3 916)
Project cost {400 000) (222 816) (622 816) (650 835) (28 019)
General Expenses (780 982) {(170272) (951 264) (1 100 458) (149 204}  Nole 26
Total expenditure {6 773 785) (94 914) (6 868698) (6089 077) 779 622
Operating deficit (38 785) {94 914) (133 699} (7 213) 126 486
Capital expenditure (235 000) - (235 000) (7 499) 227801 Note 26
Deficit before taxation (273 785) (94 914} (368 699) (14712} 353 987
Actual Amount on Comparable {273 785) (94 914) (368 699) (14 712) 353987
Basis as Presented in the
Budget and Actual
Comparative Statement
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

{Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1. Presentation of Financial Statements

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board in accordance with Section 122(3) of the Municipal Finance
Management Act (Act 56 of 2003).

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise,

Assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses were not offset, except where cffsetting is either required or permitted by a
Standard of GRAP.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 Presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the municipal entity.

1.2 Rounding

All financlai figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rand.

1.3 Going concern assumption

These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the municipal entity will continue to operate as
a going concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.4 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty

In preparing the financial statemants, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
represented in the financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgment
is inherant in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be material
to the financial statements. Significant judgments include:

Trade receivables and loans and receivables

The municipal entity assesses its trade recelvables and loans and receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting
period, In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgments as
to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial

asset,

The impairment for trade receivables and loans and receivables is calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss
ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and other indicators present at the reporting date that
correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to loan balances in the porifolio and scaled to
the estimated loss emergence perlod.

Fair value estimation

The camying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair
values. The fair value of financial liabilities for discfosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the municipal entity for similar financial instruments.

Subsequent to Initial measurement, investment property is measured at fair value. The fair value of investment property
reflects market conditions at the reporting date, determined by the external valuator.
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

{Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Einancial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.4 Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty {continued)

Impairment testing

The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units and individual assets have been determined based on the higher of
value-in-use calculations and fair values less costs to seil. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions.

The municipal entity reviews and tests the carrying value of assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets are grouped at the lowest level for which identifiable cash flows are
targely independent of cash flows of other assets and liabiities. if there are indications that Impairment may have occurred,
estimates are prepared of expected future cash flows for each group of assets. Expected future cash fiows used to
determine the value in use of goodwill and tangible assets are inherently uncertain and could materially change over time.
They are significantly affected by a number of factors including production estimates, supply demand, together with
economic factors such as exchange rates inflation interest.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used
during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
« itis probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item wilt flow to the municipal
entity; and
. the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of aparating in the manner intended by management. Trade
discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. :

Whaere an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition.

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired Is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the
acquired item's fair value was not determinabie, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.

When significant companents of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for -
as separate items {major components) of property, plant and equipment. :

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an llem of
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.

Recoghition of costs in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the item is in the
location and cendition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Major spare parts and standby equipment which are expected to be used for more than one periad are included in property,
plant and equipment. In additior, spare patts and standby equipment which can only be used in connection with an item of
property, plant and equipment are accounted for a property, plant and equipment.

Major inspection costs which are a condition of continuing use of an item of property, plant and equipment and which meet
the recognition criteria above are included as a replacement in the cost of the item of praperty, plant and equipment. Any
remaining inspection costs fram the previous inspection are derecegnised.

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 3@ June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

1.8 Property, plant and equipment {continued)
The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have basn assessed as follows:

item Depreciation method Average useful life
Furniture and fixures Straight line 7
Office equipment Straight line 3
Computer equipment Straight line 3

The residual value, and the useful lifs and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date.
If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimats.

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item 18
depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless itis inciuded in the carrying amount of
another asset,

1.6 Intangible assets
An asset is identifiable if it either:
» isseparable ie.is capable of being separated or divided from an antity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or

exchanged, either individually or together with related contract, identifiable assets or liability, regardless of
whether the entity intends to da so; or

«  asises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether thase rights are
transferante or separable from the municipal entity or from other rights and obligations.

A binding arrangement describes an arrangament that confers similar rights and obligations on the parties to it as if it were in
the form of a contract.
An intangible asset Is recagnised wher:
s itis probable that the expected future aconomic benefits or service potential that are atiributable to the asset will
flow to the municipal entity; and
« the cost or fair valus of the asset can be measured reliably.

The municipal entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using reasonable and
supportable assumnptions that reprasent managemen 's best estimate of the set of aconamic canditions that will exist over
the useful life of the asset.

Where an intangible asset is acquired through & nan-exchange transaction, its initial cost at the date of acquisition is
measured at its fair value as at that date.

Expenditure on research {or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred.
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairmeni losses.

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.

Internally generated goodwill is not recognised as an intangible asset.

Amortisation is provided to write down the intanglble assets, on a straight line basis, to their rasidual values as follows:

{tem Years
Website development ]

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an intangible assets is included in surplus or deficit when the assetis
derecognised (unless the Standard of GRAF on |eases requires otherwise on & sale and leaseback).

4.7 Financial instruments -

A finaneial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of ane municipal entity and a financial tiability or a
residual interest of another municipal entity.
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements: Accounting Policies

4.7 Financial instruments {continued)

The amortised cost of a financial asset or financiai liability is the amaount at which the financia! asset or financial iiability is
measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amartisation using the effective
interest method of any differenca between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction {directly or
through the use of an allowance account) for impairment or uncollectibility.

Derecognition is the removal of a previously recagnised financial asset or financial liability from an municipal entity's
staternent of financial position.

A derivative is a financial instrument or other confract with all three of the following characteristics:
« |t requires na initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than wollld be required for other
types of contracts that would be expected to have a similar respanse to changes in market factors.
+  Iltis settled at a future date.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial assetor a financial liability {or group
of financial assets or financial liabiliies) and of aliocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or recaipts through the expected
fife of the financial insirument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or
financial itability. When calcutating the effective interest rate, an municipal entity ghall estimate cash fiows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, sall and simitar options) out shalt not consider future
credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points paid or recaived between pariies to the cantract that are an integral
part of the effactive interest rate (see the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions), fransaction costs,
and all other premiums or discounts. There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expecied life of a group of similar
financial instruments can be estimated reliably. Howaver, in those rare cases when it Is not possible ta reliably estimate the
cash flows ar the expacted life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the municipal entity shall use the
contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the flnancial instrument {or group of financial instruments).

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, betwsen knowledgeable willing parties
in an amm's length transaction,

A financial asset is:
s cash;
« g residual interest of another municipal entity; or
« acontractual right to:
- receive cash or another financial asset from another municipal entity; or
- exchange financiai assets of financial liabilities with anather municipal entity under conditions that are
potentially favourable to the municipal entity. )

A financial liability is any liability that is & contractual obfigation to!
« deliver cash or ancther financial asset to another municipat entity; or
«  exchangse financial assets o financial liabiliies under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the municipal

entity.
Classification

The municipal entity has the following types of financiai assets (classes and categary) as reflectad on the face of the
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Receivables from exchange transactions Financial asset measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents Financial asset measured at amortised cost

The municipal entity has the following types of financial liabilities (classes and category) as reflected on the face of the
statement of financial position or in the notes thereto:

Class Category
Payables from exchange transactions Financial liability measured at amortised cost
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

{Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial statements: Accounting Policies

4.7 Financial instruments {continued)
initlal recognition

The municipal entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the
municipal entity becomes a party to the contractuat provisions of the instrument.

The municipal entify recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

The municipal entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs thatare
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

The municipal entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value.

The municipal entity first assesses whether the substance of a concessionary loan is in fact a loan. On initial recognition, the
municipal entity analyses a concessionary loan into its component parts and accounts for sach component separately. The
municipal entity accounts for that part of & concessionary foan that is:
«  asocial benefit In accordance with the Framewaork for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements,
where it is the issuar of the loan; or
«  non-exchange revenue, in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers), where it is the recipient of the loan.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabillties

The municipal entity measures ail financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following
categories:

«  Financial instruments at fait value.

«  Financial instruments at amorfised cost.

«  Financiai instruments at cost.

All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.
Fair value measurement considerations

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial instrument is not active, the
municipal entity astablishes fair value by using a valuation technique. The objective of using a valuation technique isto
establish what the transaction price would have been on the measurement date in an arm's length exchange motivated by
normal operating considerations. Valuation techniques include using recent arm's fength market transactions between
knowledgeable, willing parties, if avaiiable, reference to the current fair value of anather instrument that is substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analysis and option pricing models. If there is a valuation fechnique cammonly used by market
participants to price the instrument and that technigue has been demonstrated to provide reliable gstimates of prices
obtained in actual market transactions, the entity uses that technigue. The chosen valuation technique makes maximum use
of market inputs and relies as little as possible on entity-specific inputs. it incorporates all factors that market participants
would consider In setting a price and Is consistent with accepted aconomic methodologies for pricing financial instruments.
Periodically, an municipal entity calibrates the valuation technique and tests it for validity using prices from any observable
current market fransactions in the same instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging) ar based on any available
observable market data. '

The fair vaiue of a financial Jiability with a demand featurs {e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than the amount payable on
demand, discounted from the first date that the amount could be required to be paid.

Reclassification

The municipal entity does not reciassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
«  combined instrument that is required to e measured at fair value; or

s aninvestmentina residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.

Where the municipal entity cannot reliably measure the fair value of an embedded derivative that has been geparated from a
host contract thatis a financial instrument at a subsequent reporfing date, it measures the combined instrument at fair value.
This requires a reclassification of the instrument from amortised cost or cost to fair value.

18



Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Lid

{Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017
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1.7 Financial Instruments (continued)

If fair value can no longer ba measured reliably for an investment in a residual interest measured at fair valus, the municipal
entity reclassifies the investment from fair value to cost. The carrying amount at the date that fair value is no longer available
becomes the cost

I 2 reliable measure becomes available for an investment in a residuat interest for which a measure was previously not
available, and the instrument would have been required to be measured at fair value, the entity reclassifies the instrument
from cost o fair value.

Gains and losses

A gain or loss arising from a change in the fair value of a financial asset or financial liability measured at fair value is
recagnised in surplus or deficit.

Eor financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cast, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or
deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through the amortisation process.

Impairment and uncollectibility of financial assets

The municipal entity assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets Is impaired.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost:

If thers is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's ariginal
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced directly OR through the use of an allowance account. The
amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the Impairment loss decreasss and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occulring after the impairment was recagnised, the previousty recognised impairment loss is reversed directly OR by
adjusting an allowance account, The reversal does not result in a carrying amount of the financlal asset that exceeds what

the amortised cost wauld have been had the impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in surplus or deficit.

Financial assets measured at cost:

If there is objective evidence that an jmpairment loss has been incurred on an investment in a residual interest that is not
measured at fair value because its fair vatue cannot be measured reliably, the amount of the impairment loss Is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment fosses are not reversed.

Derecognition
Financial assets
The municipal entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.

The municipal entity derecognises a financial asset only when:

s the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financiat asset expire, are settied or waivad,

«  the municipal entity Fransfers to another party substantially afl of the tisks and rewards of ownership of the
financial asset; or

«  the municipal entity, despite having retained some significant risks and rewards of ownership of the financial

asset, has transferred control of the asset to anather party and the other party has the practical ability to sell the
asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party, and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing
to impose additional restrictions on the transfer. In this case, the municipal entity :
- derecognise the asset, and
. recognise separately any rights and obligations created or retained in the transfer.
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1,7 Financial instrumenis {continued)

The carrying amounts of the transferred asset are allocated between the rights of abligations retained and those transferred
on the basis of their relative fair values at the transfer date. Newly created rights and obligations are measured at their fair
values at that date. Any difference between the consideration received and the amounts recognised and derecognised is
recognised in surplus or deficit in the periad of the transfer.

If the municipal entity transfers a financial asset in a transfer that qualifies for deracognition in its entirety and retains the right
1o service the financial asset forafee, it recognise either a servicing assetora servicing liability for that servicing contract. If
the fee to be received is not expected to compensate the entity adequately for performing the servicing, a servicing liabllity
for the servicing obligation is recognised at its fair vaiue, If the fee to be received is expected to be more than adequate
compensation for the servicing, a servicing asset is recognised for the servicing right atan amaunt determined on the basis
of an alfocation of the carrying amount of the larger financial asset.

if, as aresultof a transfer. a financial asset is derecognised in its entirety but the transfer results in the entity obtaining a new
financiat asset or assuming a new financial liability, or a servicing liability, the entity recognise the new financial asset,
financial liability or servicing liability at fair value.

On derecognition of & financial assetin its antirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.

if the transferred asset is part of a larger financial asset and the part transferrad qualifies for derecagnition in its entirsty, the
previous carrying amount of the larger financial asset is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the
part that is derecognised, pased on the relative fair values of those parts, on the date of the transfer, For this purpose, a
retained servicing asset is treated as a part that continues 1o be recognised. The difference between the carying amaount
allocated to the part derecognised and the sum of the consideration recelved for the part derecognised is recognised in
surplus or deficit.

If a fransfer does not result in derecagnition because the municipal entity has retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the transferred asset, the municipal entity continue o recognise the transfarred assetin its entirety and
recognise a financial liability for the consideration received. In subsequent periods, the municipal entity recagnises any
revenue on the transferred asset and any expense incurred on the financial Nability. Neither the asset, and the associated
liakility nor the revenus, and the associated expensas are offset.

Financial liabilities

The municipat entity removes a financial fiabillty {or a part of a finandial hiability) from its statementt of financial position when
it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled, expires or waived.

An exchange between an existing borrower and iender of debt instruments with substantially diffarent terms is accounted for
as having extinguished the original financial liablity and & new financial liability is recognised. Similarly, & substantial
modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it is accounted for as having extinguished the originai
financial liability and having recognised a new financial liability.

The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability {or part of a financial liability) extinguished or transfarred fo
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
surplus or deficit. Any liabilities that are waived, fargiven or assumed by another municipal entity by way of a non-exchange
transaction are accounted for in accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revanue from Non-exchange Transactions
(Taxes and Transfers). '

Presentation

Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as revenue or expense in
surplus or deficit.

Dividends or sinilar distributions refating to @ financial instrument or & component that is a financial Fiability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.

Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or @ compenent thatis a financial fiability is recognised as revenue or
expense in surplus or deflcit.
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4.7 Financial instruments {continued)

Distributions to holders of residual interests are recagnised by the municipal entity directly in net assets. Transaction costs
incurred on residual interests are accounted for as a deduction from net assets, Income tax [where applicable] relating to
distributions o holders of residual interests and to transaction costs incurred on residual interests are accounted for in
accordance with the International Accounting Standard on Income Taxes.

A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when the municipal entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set aff the recoghised amounts and intends either to
seitls on a net basis, or to realise the asset and setfle the liabllity simultaneously.

in accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that dogs not qualify for derecognition, the municipal entity does not offset the
transferred asset and the associated liability.

1.8 Leases

A lease Is classified as a finance lease [f it transfers substantially afl the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is

classified as an operating lease it it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidentai to ownershig.
When 2 lease includes poth land and buildings elements, the enfity assesses the classification of each elament separately.

Operating leases - lessae

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, The difference
between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset
or liability.

1.9 Impairment of cash-generating assets

Cash-generating assets are assets managed with the objective of generating a commerdcial return. An asset generates a
commercial return when it is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by @ profit-oriented entity.

impairment is a loss in the future aconamic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systemaiic
recognition of the loss of the asset's future aconomic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation).

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the staternent of financial position after deducting any
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon.

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets managed with the objective of generating a commaercial
return that generates cash inflows from cantinuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets.

Costs of disposal are incrementat cosks directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, axcluding finance costs and income
tax expense.

Depraciation {Amortisation} is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life.

Fair value less casts to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an assst in an arm'’s length transaction between
knowledgeabla, willing parties, less the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-generating unit is the higher its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use.

Useful life is either:
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to e used by the municipal entity; or
{p) the number of production or gimilar units expected to be abtained from the asset by the municipal entity.

Criteria developed by the municipal entity to distinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-generating assets are as
follow:
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1.10 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets
Non.cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generafing assets.

Identification
When the carrying amount af a non-cash-generating asset exceeds ifs recoverable service amourdt, it is impaired.

The municipal entity assesses at each reporting date whether there Is any indication thata non-cash-generating asset may
pe impaired. If any such indication exists, the municipal entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset.

Value in use

Value in use of non-cash-generating assets is the present value of the non-cash-generating assets remaining service
potential.

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating assets is datermined using the following
approach:

Depreciated replacement cost approach

The present value of the remaining service potential of a non-cash-generating asset is determined as the depreciated
replacement cost of the asset. The reptacement cost of an asget is the cost to replace the asset's gross service potential.
This cost is depreciated to reflect the asset in its used conditien, An asset may be replaced aither through reproduction
{replication) of the existing asset or through replacement of its gross sefvice potential. The depreciated replacement cast is
measured as the reproduction or replacement cost of the asset, whichever is lower, less accumulated depreciation
calculated on the basis of such cost, to reflect the already consumed or expired service potential of the asset.

The replacement cost and reproduction cost of an asset is determined on an “optimised” basis. The rationale is that the
municipal entity would not replace or reproduce the asset with a like asset if the asset to be replaced or reproduced is an
overdesigned or overcapacity asset. Overdesigned assets contain features which are unnecessary for the goods or sefvices
the asset provides. Overcapacity assels are assets that have a greater capacily than is necessary to mest the demand for
goods or services the asset provides. The determination of the replacement cost or reproduction cost of an asseton an
optimised basis thus reflects the service potential required of the asset.

Recognition and measurement

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than ifs carrying amount, the carfying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impaimment loss.

An impaimment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit.
Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating assetio
which it velates, the fmnunicipal entity recognises a fability oniy to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP.

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depraciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-ganerating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any),
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Reversal of an impalrment loss

The municipal entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any Indication that an impatrment loss recagnised in prior
periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may hava decreased. If any such indication exists, the
municipal entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset.
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1.10 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets {continued)

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods fora non-cash-generating asset is reversad if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable service amaunt since the last impairment lose was recognised. The
carrying amount of the assetis increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment
loss. The increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of depraciation of amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior periods.

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately In surplus or deficit.

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation {amortisation) charge far the non-cash-generating
asset is adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating assat's revised carrying amount, less its residual
value {jf any), on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. -

Redesignation

The redesignation of assets froma cash-generating asseitoa non-cash-generating asset o from a non-cash-genarating
asset to a cash-generating asset only occur when there is clear evidence that such a redesignation is appropriate.

1.11 Contributed capital

An equity instrument |s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of a municipal entity afer deducting all of
its liabilities.

1.12 Employee benefits
Employee benefits are all forms of consideration givenby a municipal entity in exchange for servica rendered by employees.

A qualifying insurance policy is an insurance policy issued by an insurer that is not a related party {as defined in the Standard
of GRAP on Related Party Disclosures) of the reporting municipal entity, if the proceeds of the policy can be used only to pay
or fund emptoyes benafits under a defined benefit plan and are not available to the reporting municipal entity's own creditors
{even in liquidation) and cannot be paid to the reporting municipa! entity, unless either.
s the proceeds represent surplus assets thatare not needed for the policy to meet all the related employee benefit
obligations; or
» the proceeds are returned to the reporting raunicipal entity to reimburse it for employee benefits already paid.

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as a resuit of either.
. a municipal entity's decision fo terminate an employee’s employment before the normal retirement date; of
«  anemployee's decision fo accept voluntary tedundancy in exchange for those benefits.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employes benefits are employee benefits {other than termination benefits) that are due to be settled within twalve
months after the end of the perlod in which the employess render the related service.

Short-term employee benefits include items such as:

s wages, salaries and soclal security contributions;

«  short-term compensated absences (such as paid annual leave and paid sick leave) where the compensation for
{he absences is due to be sattled within twelve months after the end of the reporting period in which the
employees render the related employee service;

«  ponus, incentive and performance related payments payable within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period in which the employees render the retated service; and

«  non-monetary benefits {for example, medical care, and free or subsidised goods or services such as housing, cars
and cellphones) for current employees.

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity recognise the undiscounted
amoaunt of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service:

v s aliability (accrued expense), after deducting any amount already paid. If the amount already paid exceads the
undiscounted amount of the banefits, the municipal entity recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense)} to
the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

e asan expense, unless another Standard requires or parmits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset.
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1.12 Employee benefits {continued)

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase

their entilement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. The municipal entity measure the
expected cost of accumulating compensated absances as the additional amaount that the entity expects topay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumuiated at the reporting date.

The entity recognise the expected cost of bonus, incentive and performance related payments when the municipal entity has
a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made. A prasent obligation exists when the entity has no realistic alternative but to make the payments.

1.13 Contingencies
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 15.

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the hoider for a
lass it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument,

Lozn commitment is & firm commitment to provide credit under pre-specified tarms and conditions.

The municipal entity recognises a provision for financial guarantees and loan commitments when it is probable that an
outflow of resources ambodying economic benefits and service potential will be required to settle the obligation and & rellable
estimate of the obligaticn can be made.

Determining whether an outflow of resources is probable in refation to financial guarantees requires judgment. Indications
that an outflow of resources may be probable are!
« financial difficulty of the debtor;
« defaults or delinquencies In interest and capital repayments by the debtor;
+ breaches of the terms of the debt instrument that result in it being payable earfier than the agreed term and the
ability of the debtor to settle its obligation on the amended tarms; and
«  adediine in prevailing economic circumstances (e.9. high interest rates, inflation and unemployment) that impact
an the ability of entities to repay their obligations.

Where a fee Is received by the municipal entity for issuing a financial guarantee andfor where a fee is charged on foan
commitments, itis consideraed in determining the best estimate of the amount required to seitle the obligation at reporting
date. Where a fee is charged and the municipal entity considers that an outflow of econamic resources is probable, a
municipal entity recognises the obligation at the higher of:

.  the amount determined using in the Standard of GRAP on Provisions, Contingent Liabiiities and Contingent

Assets; and
«  the amount of the fee initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the Standard of GRAP on Revenue from Exchange Transactions.

4.14 Commitmentis

tems are classified as commitments when an entity has committed itself to future transactions that will normally resultin the
outflow of cash.

Disclosures are required in respect of unfecogrnised contractual commitments.

Commitments for which disclosure is necessary to achieve a fair presentation should be disclosed in a note to the financial

statements, if both the following criteria are met:
« Contracts should be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost {for exampie, contracts for computer or
building maintenance services}; and
s  Contracts should relate to something other than the routing, steady, state business of the entity — therefore salary
commitments refating to gmployment cantracts or secial security benefit commitments are excluded.

1.45 Revenue from exchange transactions

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in
an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
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1.15 Revenue from exchange transactions {continued)

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipal entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value {primarily in the form of goods, sefvices or Uuse of assets) to the other party in
exchange.

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, betwean knowledgeable, willing parties
in an arm's length transaction.

Measurement

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume
rebates.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied:
«  the municipal entity has transferred to the purchaser the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goads;
e the municipal entity retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold,
« the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
« Itis probable that the economic benefits or service patential associated with the transaction will flow to the

municipal entity, and
s the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured refiably.

Rendering of services

When the autcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenus assoclated with the
transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome ofa
transaction can be estimated reiiably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

. the amount of revenue can be measired reliably;

« itis probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction wilt flow to the

municipa) entity,
+  the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and
+ the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs ta complete the transaction can be measured reliably.

When services are performed by an indeterminate number of acts aver a specified time frame, revanue is recognised on a
straight line basis over the specified time frame unless there is evidence that some other method better represents tha stage
of completion. When a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is postponed until
the significant act is executed.

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be esiimated refiably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable.

Service revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. Stage of
completion Is determined by .

Interest

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assels yialding interest is recognised when:
» [tis probable that the econamic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the

municipal entity, and
«  The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.
Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method.
1.16 Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Revenue comprises gross inflows of economic benefils or service potential received and receivable by an municipal entity,
which represents an increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners.
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116 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued)

Conditions on transferred assets are stiputations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied
in the asset is required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or future economic benefits or service potential must be
returned to the transferor.

Controt of an asset arise when the municipal entity can use or otherwise benefit from the asset in pursuit of its objectives and
can exclude or otherwise regulate the access of others to that benefit.

Exchange transactions are transactions i which one entity receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished, and
directly gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of cash, goods, services, or use of assets) to ancther entity in
gxchange.

Expenses paid through the tax system are amounts that are available to beneficiaries regardless of whather or not they pay
taxes.

Non-exchange transactions are transactions that are not exchange transactions. In a non-exchange transaction, an
municipal entity either receives valug from another municipal entity without directly giving approximately equal value in
exchange, or gives value to another municipal entity without directly receiving approximately equal value in exchange.

Restrictions on transferred assets are stipulations that limit or direct the purposes for which a transferred asset may be used,
but do not specify that future economic benefits or service potential is required to be retumed to the transferor if not deployed
as specified.

Stipulations on transferred assets are terms in laws or regulation, or a hinding arrangement, imposed upan the use ofa
transferred asset by entitiss external to the reporting municipal entity.

Tax expenditures are preferential provisions of the tax law that provide ceriain taxpayers with concessions that are not
available to others,

The taxable event is the event that the government, legislature or other authority has determined will be subject to taxation.

Taxes are economic bensfits or service potential compuisorily paid or payabie fo entities, in accordance with laws and or
regulations, established to provide revenue to government. Taxes do not include fines or other penaliies imposed for
breaches of the law.

Transfars are inflows of future economic benafits of service potential from non-exchange transactions, other than taxes.

Recognition

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction racognised as an asset is recognised as revanue, except to the
extent that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow.

As the municipal eniity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a nan-
exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an

amaunt of revenue equal fo that reduction.

Measurement

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the
municipal entity.

When, as a resuli of a non-exchange transaction, the municipal entity recognises an asset, it also recognises revenue
equivalent to the amount of the asset measured at its falr value as at the date of acquisition, unless it Is also required to
recognise a lability, Where a liability is required to be recognised it will be measured as the best estimate of the armount
raquired to settie the obligation at the reporting date, and the amount of the increase in net assets, if any, recognised as
revenue. When a liability is subsequently reduced, hecause the taxable event occurs or a condition is satisfied, the amount
of the reduction in the liability is recognised as revenue.

1.17 Comparative figures

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year.
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1.18 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitiess expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.

Afl expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred, The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the
expense, and where recovered, itis subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance.

1.19 Budget information

Municipal entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations {or

equivalent), which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar.

General purpose financial reporing by municipal entity shail provide information on whether resources were obtained and
used in accaordance with the legally adapted budget.

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by econamic classification linked to performance outcome
objectives,

The approved budget covers the fiscal peried from 2016/07/01 to 2017/06/30.
The budget for the economic enfity includes all the entity's approved budgets under its control.

The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted
amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts.

1.20 Related parties

The municipal entity operates in an ecanamic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the Scuth
African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South
Africa, only entittes within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties.

Managsment are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the municipal entity,
including those charged with the governance of the municipal entity in accordance with legisiation, in instances where they
are required to perform such functions.

Close rhembers of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the municipal entity.

Only transactions with related parties not at arm's length or nat in the ardinary course of business are disclosed.

1.21 Events after reporting date

Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and
the data when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events can be identified:
«  those thai provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date {ad|usting events after the reporting

date); and
+  ihoss that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting

date).

The municipal entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financiaf statements to reflect adjusting events after the
reporting date once the event occurred.

The municipal entity wil disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such
estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial statements.
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2. New standards and Interpretations
24 Standards and interpretations not yet effective or relevant

The following standards and interpretations have been published and are mandatory far the municipal entity’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2017 or later periods but are not yet effective or relevant to its operations:

GRAP 34: Separate Financial Statements

The objective of this Standard is to prescribe the accounting and disciosure requirements for investments in controlied
entities, joint ventures and associates when an entity prepares separate financial statements.

It furthermore covers Definitions, Preparation of separate financial statements, Disclosure, Transitional provisions and
Effective date.

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard untll such time as it becomes applicable to the municipal
entity's operations.

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.
GRAP 35: Consolidated Financial Statements

The objective of this Standard is to establish principles for the presentation and preparation of consolidated financial
statements when an entity conirels one or mare other entities.

To meet this objective, the Standard:
s requires an entity (the controlling entity) that cantrols one or more ofher entities (controlled entities} to present

consolidated financial statements;

«  defines the principle of control, and astablishes contro! as the basis for consolidation;

«  sets out how to apply the principle of control to identlfy whether an entity controls anather entity and therefore
must consolidate that entity;

« sets out the accounting requirements for the preparation of consolidated financial statements; and

. defines an investment entity and sets out an exception to consolidating particutar controlled entities of an

investment entity.

1t furthermore covers Definitions, Control, Accounting requirements, [nvestment entities; Fair value requirement, Transitional
provisions and Effective dafe.

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

The municipal entity does nat envisage the adopfion of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the municipal
entity's operations.

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.
GRAP 38: Disclosure of interests in Other Entitles

The objective of this Standard is to require an entity to disclose information that enables users of its financial statements fo
evaluate:
e the nature of, and risks associated with, its interests in controlled entities, unconsolidated controlled entities, joint
arrangements and associates, and structured entities that are not consolidated, and
+  the effects of those interests on its financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

It furtharmore covers Definitions, Disclosing information about interests in other entities, Significant judgments and
assumptions, Investment entity status, interests in controlled entities, Interasts in joint arrangements and associates,
Interests in structured entities that are not consolidated, Non-qualitative ownership interests, Controfling interests acguired
with the intention of disposal, Transitional provisions and Effective date.

The effective date of the standard is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.
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2. New standards and interpretations {continued)

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the municipal
entity's operations,

The impact of this standard is currently being assessed.
IGRAP 18: Interpretation of the Standard of GRAP on Recognition and Derecognition of Land

This interpretation of the Standards of GRAP applies to the initial recognition and derecognition of land in an entity's financial
statements. It also considers joint control of land by more than ane entity.

When an entity concludes that it controls the land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of
GRAP, it appiies the applicable Standard of GRAP, i.e. the Standard of GRAP on Inventaries, Investment Property (GRAP
16), Property, Plant and Equipment (GRAP 17) or Heritage Assets. As this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP does not
apply fo the classification, initial and subsequent measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements of fand, the entity
appiies the applicable Standard of GRAP to account for the fand once contral of the land has been determined. An entity
also applies the applicable Standards of GRAP to the derecognition of land when it concludes that it does not control the
land after applying the principles in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP.

in accordance with the principles in the Standards of GRAP, buildings and other structures on the land are accounted for
separately. These assets are accounted for separately as the future economic benefits or service potential embedied in the
1and differs from those included ih bulldings and other structures. The recognition and derecognition of buildings and other
structures are not addressed in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP.

The effactive date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the interpretation until such time as it becomes applicable to the
municipal entity's operations.

The impact of this intarpretaﬁdn is currently being assessed.
GRAP 17 {as amended 2016): Property, Plant and Equipment

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Property, Plant and Equipment resulted from editorial changes to the original text
and Inconsistencies in measurement requirements in GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAF in relation to the
treatment of transaction costs. Other changes resulted from changes made to IPSAS 17 on Property, Plant and Equipment
(IPSAS 17) as a result of the IPSASB's Improvements to {PSASs 2014 Issued in January 2015 and Improvements to
IPSASs 20115 issued in March 2016.

The most significant changes to the Standard are:

«  General improvements: To clarify the treatment of transaction costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired
in non-exchange transactions to be in line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12}, and To clarify the
measurement principle when assets may be acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or assets, ora
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets.

+  {PSASB amendments: To clarify the revaluation methodology of the carrying amount and accumulated
depreciation when an Item of property, plant, and equipment is ravalued; To clarlfy acceptable methods of
depreciating assets; To align terminology in GRAP 17 with that in [PSAS 17. The term “specialist military
equipment” in IPSAS 17 was replaced with the term “weapan systems" and provides a description of what it
comprises in accordance with Government Finance Statistics terminalogy; and To define a bearer plant and
include bearer plants within ihe scope of GRAP 17, while the produce growing on bearer piants will remain within
the scope of GRAP 27.

The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the amendment untit such tima as it bacomes applicable to the
municipal enfity's operations.

The impact of this amendment is currently being assessed.
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2. New standards and interpretations {continued)
GRAP 18 (as amended 201 §): Segment Reporting

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Saegment Reporting resulted from editorial and cther changes to the original text
have been made to ensure consistency with other Standards of GRAP.

The most significant changes to the Standard are:

. General improvements: An appendix with llustrative segment disclosures has been deleted from the Standard as
the National Treasury has issued complete examples as part of its implementation guidance.

Tha effective date of the amendment s for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such time as it becomes applicable to the municipal
entity's operations.

The impact of this amendment is currently being assessed,
GRAP 21 (as amended 2018): impairment of non-cash-generating agsets

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on \mpairment of Non-cash Generating Assets resulted from changes made {o
JPSAS 21 on Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets (IPSAS 21)asa result of the IPSASE's Impairment of Revalued
Assets issued in March 2016.

The most significant changes to the Standard are:
«  IPSASB amendments: To update the Basis of conclusions and Comparison with IPSASs to reflect the IPSASBE's
recent decision on the impairment of revalued assels.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.

The municipat entity does not envisage the adoption of the amendment until such tima as it becomes applicable to the
municipal entity's operations.

The impact of this amendment is currently being assessed.
GRAP 26 (as amended 2016): Impairment of cash-generating assets

Amendments Changes to the Standard of GRAP an Impairment of Cash Generating Assets resuited from changes made to
IPSAS 26 on Impairment of Cash—Generating Assets (IPSAS 26)as a result of the IPSASB's Impairment of Revalued Assets
issued in March 2016. _

The most sigﬁiﬂcant changes to the Standard are.
« |PSASB amendments: To update the Basis of conclusions and Comparison with 1PSASs to reflect the IPSASB's
recent decision on the impalrment of ravalued assets.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018,

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the amendment until such time as it becomes applicable to the
municipal entity's operations.

The impact of this amendment is currently being assessed.

GRAP 31 (as amended 2016): intangible Assets

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on Intangible Assets resulted from inconsistencies in measurement requirements in
GRAP 23 and other asset-related Standards of GRAP in relation to the treatment of transaction costs. Other changes
resulted from changes made to [PSAS 31 on Intangible Assets (IPSAS 31)asa result of the IPSASE'S improvements to
IPSASs 2014 issued in January 2015. . ’

The most significant changes to the Standard are!
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2. New standards and interpretations {continued)
«  General improvements: To add the treatment of transaciion costs and other costs incurred on assets acquired in
non-exchange transactions to be In line with the principle in GRAP 23 (paragraph .12); and To clarify the
measurement principle when assets may be acquired in exchangs for & non-monetary asset or assets, or a
combination of monetary and non-menetary assets
e |PSASE amendments: To clarify the revaluation methodology of the carrying amount and accumulated
depreciation when an itemn of intangible assets is revalued; and To clarify acceptable methods of depreciating

assetls
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the amendrent until such time as it becomes applicable to the
municipal entity's operations.

The impact of this amendment is currenily being assessed.
GRAP 106 (as amended 2016): Transfers of functions between entities not under cmhmon control

Amendments to the Standard of GRAP on “Iransier of Functions Between Entities Not Under Commaon Control resulted from
changes made to IFRS 3 on Business Combinations ({FRS 3) as @ result of the |IASB’s amendments on Annual
Improvements to I[FRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle iesued In December 2013,

The most significant changes to the Standard are:
«  1ASB amendments: To require contingent consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability 1 be measured

at fair value at each reporting period.
The effective date of the amendment is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard until such ime as it becomes applicable to the municipal
entity's operations.

ltis unli_kely that the amendment will have a material impact on the municipal entity's financial statements.
Diractive 12: The Selection of an Appropriate Reporting Framework by Public Entities

Historically, public entities have prepared financial statements in accordance with generally recagnised accounting practice,
unless the Accounting Standards Board {the Board) approved the application of generally accepted accounting practice for
that entity. “Generally accepted accounting practice” has been taken to mean Statements of Generaily Accepted Accounting
Practice (Statements of GAAP), or for certain entities, International Financial Reparting Standards {\FRSs) issued by the
International Accaunting Standards Board. Since Statements of GAAP have been withdrawn from 1 December 2012, public
antities will be required to apply another reporting framework in the future.

The purpose of this Directive is to prescribe the criteria to be applied by public entities in selecting and applying an
appropriate reporting framework.

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2018.

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the standard untll such time as it becomes applicable to the municipal
entity's operations.

The impact of this standard is currently bsing assessed.

IGRAP 17: Service Concession Arrangements where a Grantor Gontrols a Significant Residual Interest in an Asset
This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP provides guidance to the grantor where it has entered info a service
concession arrangement, but only controls, through ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise, a significant residual

interest in a service concession asset at the end of the arrangement, where the arrangement does not constitute a lease.
This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP shall not be applied by analogy to other types of transactions or arrangements.
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A service concession arrangement is a contractual arrangement between a grantor and an operator in which the operator
uses the service concession asset to provide a mandated function on behalf of the grantor for a specified period of time, The
operator is compensated for its services over the period of the service concession arrangement, either through payments, or
through receiving a right to earn revenue from third party users of the service concession asset, or the operator is given
access to another revenue-generating asset of the grantor for its use.

Before the grantor can recognise a service concassion asset in accardance with the Standard of GRAP on Service
Concession Arrangements: Grantor, both the criteria as noted in paragraph .01 of this Interpretation of the Standards of
GRAP need to be met. In some service concession arrangements, the grantor anly controls the residual interest in the
sarvice concession asset at the end of the arrangement, and can therefore not recognise the service concession asset in

terms of the Standard of GRAP on

A consensus is reached, in this

Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor.

and the right to receive a significant interest in a service concession asset.

The effective date of the interpretation is not yet set by the Minister of Finance.

Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP, on the recugnition of the performance obligation

The municipal entity does not envisage the adoption of the interpretation until such time as it becomes applicable to the

municipai entity's operations.

The Impact of this interpretation is

currently being assessed.

3. Receivables from exchange transactions

Rental deposits 3386 3386

Leave pay receivables 30932 33932

34 318 37 318

4. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:

Cash on hand 178 7759

Bank balances 646 331 1 097 912

Short term investments 64 848 2271
711 357 1107 942

The municipal entity had the following bank accounts

Account number / description

Bank statement balances
30 June 2017 30 June 2016 30 June 2018

Cash book balances
30 June 2017 30 Juns 2016 30 June 2015

Pefty cash - - 178 7759 7085
ABSA BANK - Cheque Accaunt - 646 331 10987 912 184 318 646 331 1097 812 184 318
40-7166-4582

ABSA BANK - 32 Day notice 340 325 323 340 325 323
Account - 92-2181-3770

ABSA BANK - Depositor Plus 64 508 1948 236412 64 508 1946 235442
Account - 92-8795-3029

Total 711179 11001383 420 053 711 367 1107 942 427 138
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
(Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

5. Property, plant and equipment

2017 2016
Cost! Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
valuation depreciation valuation  depreciation
and and

accumulated accumulated

. impairment impairment
Furniture and fixtures 171732 (122 923} 48 BO9 171732 (110 844} 60 588
Office equipment 40108 {40 107) 1 40 108 (37 098} 3010
iT equipment 149 690 (143 840) 5750 142 191 {140 629) 1562
Totat 361530 (306 970) 54 560 354 031 {288 571) 85 460

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2017
Opening Additions  Depreciation Total

- batance

Furniture and fixtures 60 888 - (12 079) 48 809
Office equipment 3010 - (3 009) 1
Computer equipment 1 562 7 499 (3311) 5750
65 460 7 499 {18 399) 54 580

Reconciliation of property, ptant and equipment - 2016

Opening  Depreciation Total
. balance

Furniture and fixtures 86 208 (25 320) 60 888
Office equipment 7942 (4 932) 3010
Computer equipment 5 811 (4 249) 1562
99 961 (34 501) 65 460

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for
inspection at the registered office of the municipal entity.

§. Intangible assets

Computer software
Website

Total

2017

2016

Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value Cost/ Accumulated Carrying value
Valyation amortisation Valuation amortisation
and and

accumulated accumulated
impairment fmpairment

48 687 (40 624) 8063 48 687 (27 447) 21 240

45 051 {45 051) - 45 051 {44 826) 425

93738 {85 875) 8063 93738 (72073) 21 665
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration number 2007/008144/07}
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2017 2016
8. Intangible assets (continued)
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2017
Opening  Amortisation Total
balance
Computer software 21240 (13 177} 8063
Website 425 (425) -
21 665 (13 602) 8 063
Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016
Opening  Amortisation TFotal
balance
Computer software 34 417 {13 177) 21240
Website 6757 (8 332) 425
41174 (18 509) 21 665
7. Payables from exchange transactions ,
Accrued leave pay 183 470 132 330
Accrued statutory payment - 97 111
Other payables 117 791 117 791
Rental and other expenses 4795 -
306 056 347 232
8. VAT payable
VAT payable 1337099 1712797
9. Confributed capital
Authaorised
1000 Ordinary shares R1 each 1000 1 000
issued
Ordinary 100 100
10. Revenue.
Interest received 43 887 16 255
Other Cash Sales 131 145 44 458
Government grants & subsidies 5906 832 5 563 950
6081 864 5 624 663
The amount included In revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services are
as follows:
Interest received 43 887 16 255
Other Cash Sales 131 145 44 458
175 032 60 713
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2017 2016
10. Revenue (continued)
The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange iransactions is as
follows:
Transfer revenue
Government grants & subsidies 5906 832 5 563 850
41, Other income
Advertising airime 131 145 10 526
Leave pay recsivable - 33932
131 145 44 468
42, Cash (used in) generated from operations
(Deficit) surplus (7 213) 242 278
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 32 002 54 010
Changes in working capital:
Recelvables from exchange transactions 3000 (33 932)
Payables from exchange transactions (41 177) (44 210}
VAT (375 698) 462 659
{389 086) 680 805
13. Taxation
Réconclliation of the tax expense
The entity is exempt fromn income tax in terms of Section S10(1)(cA)(ii) of the Income Tax Act.
14. Employee related costs
Basic 1938618 1637 030
Other payroll levies 637 003 646 897
Leave pay provision charge 57 418 218 167
Travel and accommodation 40 918 28 818
Qvertime payments 2136 53781
43th Cheques B8 520 93 598
Secretariat support - 11 580
2764 610 2687 571
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd
{Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand 2017 2016

15. Contingencies
Mr A. Mushwana vs GTEDA

Mr A. Mushwana was suspended with pay, thereafier dismissed with effect from 18 May 2015 as imposed by the presiding
officer after having followed due disciplinary hearing processes, and the case was awarded in the favour of GTEDA by

CCMA.

Subsequently, Mr A. Mushwana praceeded the matter to the High Court in terms of provisions of section 145 of the Act, for
an order to review and set aside the CCMA ruling awarded in favour of GTEDA and the process Is underway. The potential
extend of the liability cannot be determined at this stage.

Output VAT on Grants
Pravision for VAT payable has been mads, this s a result of the entity not declaring output VAT on grants received from its
funders 1.e. the Greater Tzansen Municipality and Industrial Development Corporation.

Penalties and interest might be payable to SARS as a rasult of resubmission of VAT returns, subsequently, no provision had
been made based on the fact that GTEDA is stilt in negotiations with.SARS and this cannot be measured reliably.

16. Risk management
Financial risk management
Liquidity risk

The municipal entity manages liquidiity risk through proper management of working capital, capital expenditure and actual
forecasted cash flow and its cash management policy. Adecuate reserves and liquid resources are also maintained.

The carrying amount of the financial liabilities represents the liquidity exposure. The maximum exposure to liquidity exposure
at the reporting date was.

At 30 June 2017 Less than1 Between
year and 2 years
Payables from exchange transactions 1643155 -
At 30 June 2016 Less thani1  Between 1
year and 2 years
Payables from exchange transactions 2 060 029 -
Credit risk

Credit risk consists mainly of cash depusits, cash equivalenis, derivative financial instruments and frade debtors. The
municipal entity anly deposits cash with major banks with high guality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-

party.

Trade receivables comprise & widespread customer base. Management evaluated credit risk relating o customers on an
ongoing basis. If customsrs are independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rafing, risk
control assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other
factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with limits set by the board. The
utilisation of credit fimits is regularly monitored. Sales to retail customers are settied in cash or using major credit cards.
Credit guarantee insurance is purchased when deemed appropriate.

Market risk
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in the market interest rates.

Ag the municipal entity has no significant interest-bearing asssts, the municipal entity's income and operating cash flows are
substantiafly independent of changes in market interest rates.

36




Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

(Registration number 2007/008144/07}

Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017
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Figures in Rand 2017 2016
17. Government grants and subsidies
Operating grants
Greater Tzaneen Municipality 5 906 832 5 563 950
18. Depreciation and amortisation
Property, plant and equipment 18 399 34 501
intangible assets 13 603 19 509
32 002 54 010
19, General expenses
Advertising 75 046 -
Auditors fees Note 20 258 080 224 174
Bank charges 29 595 165427
Cleaning - 33
Consumables 15283 15 929
Entertainment 10872 1557
Fines and penaities 16 503 12403
Insurance 15992 15 092
IT expenses 43 750 35790
Postage and courfer 757 522
Printing and stationery 32333 15972
Security (alarm for municipal entity property) 5156 6 345
Seminar and workshops ' 139186 -
Subscriptions and membership fees 22 832 23048
Telephone and fax 145 627 172 249
Training 28 981 11850
Travel - local 187 224 76 060
Uniforms - 99 878
First aid - 780
Statutory paymentis 198 4114 -
1100 458 727 407
20. Auditors’ fees
External audit fees 231772 177 752
Internal audit fees 26 308 46 422
258 080 424174
21, Related parties
Relationships
Controlling entity Greater Tzaneen Municipality
Major stakehoider Chief Executive Officer and Board
Related party transactions
Grant received from Greater Tzaneen Municipality
5906 832 5 563 950

Greater Tzaneen Municipality
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Greater Tzaneen Economic Development Agency (Pty) Ltd

{Registration number 2007/008144/07)
Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2017

Notes to the Financial Statements

Figures in Rand

22. Remuneration of board members

Board fees

30 June 2017

M.Z Mawasha
Adv E.S Maake
M.F Mushwana
M.V Gardner
M.J Makapan
.1 Moakamsia
B.J Pretarius
B.L Mathebula

30 June 2016

V.J.G Baloyi (Resigned)
M.V Gardner

M.F Mushwana

M.Z Mawasa (Chair}

E.S Maake

J Makapan

M.1 Moakamela

B.L Mathebula

B.J Pretorius

S.R Monakedi {Resigned)

807 858 958 116
Emoluments Travelling Total
allowance
139 705 22 674 162 379
162 976 62383 215 359
68 267 9973 68 240
17 720 1287 16 M7
49 314 58 809 108 123
62 098 19318 81 416
79318 337¢ 82 697
40 678 29 949 70627
610 076 197 782 807 858
Emoluments Travelling Total
allowance
57 971 27 401 85372
78 052 8659 86 711
93 861 18 552 112213
106 116 21978 128 094
126 288 50 565 176 853
52 259 23689 75948
84 012 23899 107 911
43 232 24 928 68 160
88 B35 8042 98 778
17 408 668 18 076
747 835 210 281 958 116
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Figures in Rand 2017 2016

231. Commitments

Authorised capital expenditure

Already contracted for but not provided for:

*  [nternal Audit 65 265 58 560

»  Annual report development 65 000 43 860

« T support 27 360 30 000

s Tzaneen Steel Industry 354 817 -

¢«  Cell phone 68 820 7 000

» Panasanic - Copier Rental 167 790 -
749 052 139 420

Cathu Consulting is an Intemat Audit Company appainted for a period rot exceeding three months for provision of internal

audit services,

PMR is a company appointed for a period not exceeding three months for printing of the 2015/16 annual report.

Bohlabelo Computers fs an IT support contract at R 3 420 per month for a period of 12 months from (1M/02/2017 to

21/02/2018.

\Viodacom contracts for the following officials, these are cell phones contracted for 24 moriths:
Chief Executive Officer (21/09/2016 to 31/08/2018) R2220 p.m
Project Manager (31/10/2016 to 31/10/2018) R 2220 p.m.

Tzaneen Steel Industry is a company (The Lessor) for office rental at R 29 568 per month for a period of cne year (1/08/2017

to 31/07/2018)

Panasortic Is a company contracted for the rental of copier machine at R 4 794 per month for a period of three years

(1/06/2017 to 30/06/2020)

This committed expenditure relates to property and will be financed by available bank facilities, retained surpluses, rights

issue of shares, issue of debentures, mortgage facilities, existing cash resources, funds intemally generated, etc.
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Figures in Rand

2M7

2018

24, Prior period errors
Statement of Financial Position 2016

The correction of the errors are as follows:

R122674 Accounts payable
2016/06/30 Corraction of prior year accruals R 122 875

R 122 674 Accumzulated Surplus
2016/06/30 Correction of prior year R 122 675

Statement of Financial Position

Current Assets

Receivables from exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents
Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Payables from exchange transactions
VAT payable

Contributed capital

Accumulated deficit

Statement of Financial Performance

R1257 Employee costs
2018/06/30  Correction of prior year accrual R 12 571

R108468 General expenses
2016/06/30  Correction of prior year accrual R 108 407

R 1636 Project costs
2016/06/30  Correction of prior year accrual R 1 836

2016 Correction of 2016 Restated

Previously arror
reported

37318 - 37318
1107 942 - 1107 942
65 460 - 65 460
21 665 - 21665
469 908 {122 678) 347 232
1712797 - 1712797
100 - 100
{950 420) (122 676) (827 744)
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Figures in Rand

2017

2018

24, Prior period errors (confinued)

Statement of Financial Performance

Revenue

Revenue from exchange transactions
Other income

Interest received - investment
Transfer revenue

Government grants & subsidies
Expenditure

Employee costs

Consulting fees

Remuneration of board members
Depreciation and amortisation
General expenses

Lease rentals on operating lease
Project costs

Repairs and maintenance

Social inclusion

Surplusi(loss) for the year

Cash Flow Statement

2018 Correction of 2016 Restated

Previousily error
reported

44 458 - 44 458

16 255 - 16 255

5 563 950 - 5 563 850
(2 700 241) 12 570 (2 687 871)
(22 100) 1 (22 099)
(958 116) - (958 116)
(54 010) - (54 010)
(835 876) 108 469 (727 407}
(323 137} - (323137)
(486 525) 1636 (464 889)
(117 248) - (117 248)
(7 808) - (7 808)

119 602 122 676 242 278

2016 Correction of 2016 Restated

Previously error
reperted
Cash flow from operating activities
Receipts
Saie of goods and services 10 827 215 457 225 984
Grants 5 583 850 - 5 863 950
Interest income 16 255 - 16 2565
Payments
Employee costs (3 658 357) 12 571 (3 645 788)
Suppliers {1251 570} (228 028) (1475 598)
Cash flow from investing activities
680 805 “ 680 808
25. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balances 515622 39119
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 16 503 12 403
Fruitiess and wasteful expenditure awalting condonement 68 025 51822

The report was referred to the finance and risk committee for comments after which it will be finalized.

Once the process is concluded the matter will be resolved by the Board.
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Figures in Rand

26, Budget differences
Material differences between budget and actual amounts
Revenue |

interest received
The variance is due to Interest earned an higher investment balance than anticipated.

Grants received
The variance is due to allocation of output VAT on grant received.

Other income
Cash sales generated from advertising airtime on the Radio Station (GTFM) project,

Expenditure

Employee related costs
Qvertime: The lower than anticipated spending is due to the fact that only two employees qualified for overtime as per the

reviewed overtime policy.

Performance bonus: Performance bonus for the CEQ is pending performance assessment outcome,

Remuneration of directors: The lower than anticipated spending is due to the Company Secretary's post which has been
vacant and resignation of one board member,

Depreciation
The lower than anticipating spending is due to underspending on purchasing of office equipment for MSCOA compatibility.

Generai expenditure
Information technalogy: The lower than anticipated spending is due to a delay in upgrading of the IT system for
implermentation of MSCOA.

Entertainment public; The higher than anticipated spending is due to entertainment of potential investors and funders as per
GTEDA's mandate. ’

Training: The lower than anticipated spending is due to employees been offered study bursaries to enhance employee's
qualifications.

Accounting costs: The lower than anticipated spending is due to some of the accounting services being performed internally
rather than outsourcing. :

Bursaries: The lower than anticipated spending is due to subjects exemptions that were granted to employees from previous
studies.

Finance cost
The variance is due to non-spending on SARS interest and penalties.

Capital expenditure

The underspending is due to the dslay in the implementation of MSCOA, subsequently MSCOA equipment was not
purchased.

Changes from the approved budget to the final budget

The variance between the approved and final budget is due to virements approved by the directors.
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Appendix D

segmental statement of Financial performance fot the year ended

Prior Year _ current Year
Actual Actual Surplus Actual Actual Surplus
income Expenditure I(Deflcit) Income Expenditure {{Deficit)
Rand Rand an Rand Rand Rand

Municipal entity

5624683 5 382 385 242 278 Planning and DevelopmenUEconomic so8iges 6 089 077 (7 213}
Development/Plan

5624663 6382 385 242278 _ 5081864 6089 077 (7 213)

5624683 B 382 385 242 278 Municipal entity g081864 8089 77 {7 213)

5624663 5 382 385 242 278 Total 5081864 6089 077 {7 213)
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Appendix E(1)

Actual versus Budget(Revenue and Expenditure) for the year ended 30 June

Revenue

Interest received (trading)
Grants received

Other income

Expenses

Personnel
Remuneration of
councillors
Depreciation

Finance costs

Consulting fees

Repairs and maintenance
- General

General Expenses
Project cost

Lease rental on operating
leases

Net surplus/ (deficit) for
the year -

2017
Current year Current year
2017 2017
Act, Bal. Adjusted Variance Explanation of Significant Variances
budget greater than 10% versus Budget
Rand Rand Rand Var
43 887 - 43 887 100.0 Due to interest earned for the year from our
Iinvestrnent account
5 906 832 6 735 000 (828 168) (12.3) The variance is due to allacation of cutput VAT on
grant received.

131 145 - 131 145 100.0 The higher than anficipated revenue was due to cash
sales generated from advertising airtime on the Radio
station project

6081864 6735000 (653 136} (9.7)
(2764 810) (4094 732) 1330 122 (32.5)
(807 858} - (807 B58) -

(32 002) (79091} 47 089 (50.5) Lower than anticipated spanding is due fo
underspending on purchasing of office equipment for
MSCOA compatibility.

- {10 000} 10 000 (1 00.0) This Ilfi dua o non-spending on SARS iterest and
penalties

(249 635) {614 500) 364 865 (59.4)
(223 716) (219 800) {3916) 1.8
{1 100 458) {e51254) (149 204) 15.7
(650 B35) {622 B16) (28 019} 4.5

(259963} (276 506) 16 543 6.0}

(6089 077) (6868639) 779 622 {11.4)

(7213)  {133689) 126 486 (94.6)
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Appendix E(2)

Budget Analysis of Capital Expenditure as at 30 June
2017

Actual Revised Variance Variance Expianation of significant

expendit Budget variances from hudget
ure
Rand Rand Rand %
Municipal entity
Planning and 7499 235000 227 501 §7 This is due delay in implementation of

MSCOA, subsaquently, the MASCOA

Development/Economic equipment was not purchased,

Development/Plan

7499 235000 227 501 87
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